Pecyn Dogfennau Cyhoeddus

Penalita House, Ty Penallta, ‘

Tredomen Park, Parc Tredomen,

Ystrad Mynach, ¥strad Mymach, c A E R PH’ '. LY
Hengoed CF82 7PG Hengoed CF82 7PG EVNOOR BWRDEISTREE SINGL

CAERFIFILY
>

www.caerphilly.gov.uk
www.caerffili.gov.uk

Am unrhyw ymholiad yn ymwneud &'r agenda hwn cysylltwch & Charlotte Evans
(Rhif Ffén: 01443 864210 Ebost: evanscal@caerphilly.gov.uk)

Dyddiad: Dydd Mercher, 22 Mawrth 2017

Annwyl Syr/Fadam,

Bydd cyfarfod Cabinet yn cael ei gynnal yn Ystafell Sirhywi, Ty Penallta, Tredomen, Ystrad Mynach ar
Dydd Mercher, 29ain Mawrth, 2017 am 2.00 pm. i ystyried materion a gynhwysir yn yr agenda canlynol.

Yr eiddoch yn gywir,

Chris Burns
PRIF WEITHREDWR DROS DRO

AGENDA
Tudalennau

1 | dderbyn ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb

2 Datganiadau o Ddiddordeb.

Atgoffi'r Cynghorwyr a Swyddogion o'u cyfrifoldeb personol i ddatgan unrhyw fuddiannau
personol a/neu niweidiol mewn perthynas ag unrhyw eitem o fusnes ar yr agenda hwn yn unol &
Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 2000, Cyfansoddiad y Cyngor a'r Cod Ymddygiad ar gyfer Cynghorwyr
a Swyddogion..

I gymeradwyo a llofnodi’r cofnodion canlynol:-

3 Cynhaliwyd y Cabinet ar 15fed Mawrth 2017.

A greener place Man gwyrddach

== || F
|H||l||@p|§§

e in :
ﬂdence ey e vany ’ang“age or form —
at

-i®

®)
o “QSQ



| dderbyn a nodi y cofnodion canlynol:-

4 Cynhaliwyd y Panel Ymgynghorol Cenedlaethau'r Dyfodol y 24ain Tachwedd 2016.

7-10
| dderbyn ac ystyried yr adroddiad(au) canlynol y mae angen penderfyniadau gweithredol arnynt: -
5 Polisi Risg Ffyrdd Galwedigaethol.
11-92
6 | dderbyn ac ystyried yr adroddiad(au) canlynol sydd ym marn y Swyddog Priodol yn gallu cael

ei drafod pan nad yw'r cyfarfod ar agor i'r cyhoedd ac i ystyried yn gyntaf os yw lles y cyhoedd
yn golygu y dylai'r cyfarfod gael ei gau i'r cyhoedd ar gyfer ystyriaeth o'r eitem(au):-

93-94
7 Canolfannau Cymunedol - Estyniad o Ymddeoliad Hyblyg Oherwydd Amgylchiadau Eithriadol.
95 -98
Cylchrediad:
Cynghorwyr

D. Havard, Mrs C. Forehead, N. George, D.T. Hardacre, K. James, Mrs B. A. Jones, D.V. Poole,
K.V. Reynolds, T.J. Williams a R. Woodyatt,

A Swyddogion Priodol.



Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 3

A
CAERPHILLY

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
>

CABINET

COFNODION Y CYFARFOD A GYNHALIWYD YN NHY PENALLTA, TREDOMEN
AR DDYDD MERCHER, 15FED MAWRTH 2017 AM 2.00 P.M.

YN BRESENNOL

Y Cynghorydd D.V. Poole - Cadeirydd

Cynghorwyr:

Mrs C. Forehead (Adnoddau Dynol a Llywodraethu/Rheoli Busnes), N. George
(Gwasanaethau Hamdden a'r Gymuned), D. T. Hardacre (Perfformiad a Rheoli Asedau), K.
James (Adnewyddu, Cynllunio a Datblygiad Cynaliadwy), Mrs B. Jones (Gwasanaethau
Corfforaethol), T.J. Williams (Priffyrdd, Cludiant a Pheirianneg) a R. Woodyatt (Gwasanaethau
Cymdeithasol).

Ary cyd gyda:

C. Burns (Prif Weithredwr Dros Dro), C. Harrhy (Cyfarwyddwraig Corfforaethol - Cymunedau)
ac N. Scammell (Cyfarwyddwraig Dros Dro Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol a Swyddog Adran
151).

Hefyd yn Bresennol:

S. Harris (Pennaeth Cyllid Corfforaethol Dros Dro), L. Donovan (Pennaeth Adnoddau Dynol a
Datblygiad Trefniadaeth Dros Dro), S. Couzens (Prif Swyddog Tai), M. Lloyd (Rheolwr SATC
ac Isadeiledd), S. Richards (Uwch Swyddog Cyllid), A. West (Rheolwraig Mynediadau ac
Eithriadau Ysgolion), S. Mutch (Rheolwraig y Blynyddoedd Cynnar) C. Forbes-Thompson (
Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Democrataidd Dros Dro) a C. Evans (Swyddog Gwasanaethau

Pwyllgor).
1. YMDDIHEURIADAU DROS ABSENOLDEB

Derbyniwyd ymddiheuriadau dros absenoldeb gan y Cynghorydd K.V. Reynolds.

2. DATGANIADAU O DDIDDORDEB

Fe wnaeth y Cynghorydd B. Jones ddatgan diddordeb yn yr eitem sy’n ymwneud ag Ail-
broffilio’r Rhaglen SATC a Rhaglen Cyfalaf Cyfrif Refeniw Tai 2017/18. Mae manylion wedi
eu cofnodi gyda'r eitem berthnasol.

3. CABINET - 1AF MAWRTH 2017

PENDERFYNWYD cymeradwyo cofnodion y cyfarfod a gynhaliwyd ar laf Mawrth 2017
(rhifau cofnod. 1 -6) a'u llofnodi fel cofnod cywir.

Page 1



MATERION SYDD ANGEN PENDERFYNIADAU GWEITHREDOL

CYNIGION BUDDSODDI | ARBED

Roedd yr adroddiad yn darparu’r Cabinet gyda manylion o ystod o gynigion ar gyfer cyllid ad-
daladwy untro o’r arian Buddsoddi i Arbed wrth gefn.

Gofynnwyd i Benaethiaid Gwasanaeth gyflwyno cynigion ar gyfer cyllid uniaethir a fydd yn
golygu arbedion refeniw arian parod presennol. Mae'r balans a ragwelir o'r arian Buddsoddi i
Arbed wrth gefn ar 31ain Mawrth 2017 yw £477 mil.

Derbyniwyd cynigion sef cyfanswm o £668 mil, sy’n fwy na’r cyllid sydd ar gael o £191 mil. O
ganlyniad, mae'r cynigion wedi cael eu hadolygu gan y Tim Rheoli Corfforaethol mewn
ymgynghoriad a'r Aelod Cabinet/ Dirprwy Arweinydd dros Dai ac Aelod Cabinet/ Dirprwy
Arweinydd dros Wasanaethau Corfforaethol. O ganlyniad, mae'r adroddiad yn gofyn am
gymeradwyaeth ar gyfer bidiau gwerth cyfanswm o £465 mil, a oedd yn cynnwys adnewyddu
offer ffitrwydd yng Nghanolfan Hamdden Rhisga (£160 mil), ychwanegu 3 Uned Glampio yn
Ffordd Goedwig Cwmcarn (£124 mil), Ciosg Arlwyo i'w ddarparu yn y Ganolfan Rhagoriaeth
Chwaraeon (£20 mil), Paneli PV i gael eu gosod yng Nghanolfannau Hamdden Trecelyn a
Rhisga (£113k mil) a Phaneli PV i gael eu gosod yn Depo Tir-y-Berth (£48 mil).

Gofynnwyd i'r Aelodau nodi, er yr argymhellir i beidio & chefnogi ceisiadau ar gyfer Paneli PV
ar Ysgol Gyfun Coed Duon ac Ysgol Gynradd Cwrt Rawling, rhoddwyd cymeradwyaeth mewn
cyfarfod Cabinet blaenorol am £100 mil o fuddsoddiadau i'w gwneud i osod systemau solar
PV ar 20 o ysgolion ar draws y fwrdeistref.

Yn dilyn ystyriaeth a thrafodaeth, cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd bod yr argymhellion yn yr adroddiad yn
cael eu cymeradwyo. Cytunwyd ar hyn yn unfrydol drwy godi dwylo.

PENDERFYNWYD am y rhesymau a gynhwysir yn adroddiad y Swyddog fod:-

(1) yr argymhellion i beidio cefnogi’r cynigion sef cyfanswm o £203 mil, fel y
manylir yn y tabl ym mharagraff 4.2 o’r adroddiad, i gael eu cytuno;

(ii) y cynigion sydd ar 0l, sef cyfanswm o £465 mil, i gael eu cymeradwyo am gyllid
ar sail ad-daladwy Buddsoddi i Arbed.

TALIADAU GWYLIAU BLYNYDDOL

Roedd yr adroddiad yn gofyn am gymeradwyaeth gan y Cabinet mewn perthynas & thaliadau
am wyliau blynyddol ar gyfer gweithwyr sy'n derbyn taliadau yn ychwanegol at eu cyflog
sylfaenol, er mwyn sicrhau bod y Cyngor yn cydymffurfio & chyfraith achosion wrth roi sylw i
Gytundeb Statws Sengl y Cyngor 2009.

Nodwyd ers 2010, mae nifer o achosion wedi cael eu hystyried gan y Llys Cyfiawnder Ewrop
lle mae gweithwyr wedi dadlau y dylai eu tal gwyliau gynnwys yr holl elfennau o’u tal ac nid
eu cyflog sylfaenol yn unig. Mae’r achosion hyn yn ymwneud &'r egwyddor pan fod gweithiwr
ar wyliau blynyddol, dylent gael eu talu'r un peth a phan maent yn y gwaith.

Yn dilyn ystyriaeth a thrafodaeth, cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd bod yr argymhelliad yn yr adroddiad yn
cael ei gymeradwyo. Cytunwyd ar hyn yn unfrydol drwy godi dwylo.

PENDERFYNWYD am y rhesymau a gynhwysir yn adroddiad y Swyddog i argymell i'r
Page 2



Cyngor i gymeradwyo'r Amcanion Lles a'r Datganiad Lles presennol a'u hadolygu
ymhellach gan y weinyddiaeth newydd yn dilyn yr etholiadau llywodraeth leol.

AILBROFFILIO'R RHAGLEN SATC A RHAGLEN CYFALAF CYFRIF REFENIW TAI
2017/2018

Mae'r adroddiad, a gafodd ei ystyried gan y Pwyllgor Craffu Polisi ac Adnoddau ar 28ain
Chwefror 2017, & Grwp Tasg Cartrefi Caerffili ar 16eg Chwefror 2017, yn amlinellu bod
cynnydd parhaol wedi bod a llithriad yn y rhaglen gyflwyno SATC yn ystod 2016/17.
Oherwydd hyn, mae wedi bod yn hanfodol i adolygu a diweddaru’r rhaglen ddarparu
bresennol.

Nodwyd fod y mwyafrif o’r newidiadau gwaith mewnol wedi arwain at waith yn cael ei symud
ymlaen yn y rhaglen. Mewn perthynas a’r rhaglen waith allanol, mae’r mwyafrif o newidiadau
wedi arwain at weithfeydd yn cael eu symud i’r dyfodol. Mae’r dull Cynllun Tai Lloches nawr
wedi newid gyda’r gweithfeydd yn cael eu darparu gan dimau mewnol. Mae’r gwaith nawr
wedi cael ei gynnwys yn y blaenraglen waith.

Mae cyllideb Rhaglen Gyfalaf y Cyfrif Refeniw Tai yn dyrannu'r adnoddau angenrheidiol ar sail
cynllun costau Savills. Mae gwaith yn mynd rhagddo i ddiwygio'r dull hwn fel yn y dyfodol
bydd yn seiliedig ar y gwir gostau yn cael eu cyflawni ar gyfer gwaith a wnaed sy'n rhoi
rhagamcaniad mwy realistig o ran y gwariant cyllideb arfaethedig. Bydd y ffigyrau hyn yn cael
eu hadolygu'n barhaol a’u hasesu i ddarparu’r rhagolygon mwyaf cywir posib ar gyfer
cynllunio’r cyllid.

Nododd Cabinet bod y pryderon a godwyd gan gynrychiolwyr y Grwp Tasg Cartrefi Caerffili a
Phwyllgor Craffu Adnoddau a Pholisi ac mewn perthynas & chyfranogiad tenantiaid i
gontractau yn y dyfodol a'r defnydd parhaus o'r Arolwg Savills. Nodwyd bod sicrwydd wedi
cael ei roi, lle mae'n bosib bydd cyfranogiad Tenantiaid yn parhau a'r broses DPS newydd a
bydd yr Arolwg Savills yn cael ei ddisodli'n fuan gyda chostau gwirioneddol ac nad yw bellach
yn cael ei ddefnyddio ar gyfer gwaith mewnol, a sicrhawyd na fydd Arolygon Savills yn cael eu

defnyddio ar 6l 6 mis, os bydd data digonol yn cael ei gasglu, ar gyfer gwaith allanol.

Yn dilyn ystyriaeth a thrafodaeth, cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd bod yr argymhelliad yn yr adroddiad yn
cael ei gymeradwyo. Cytunwyd ar hyn yn unfrydol drwy godi dwylo.

PENDERFYNWYD am y rhesymau a gynhwysir yn adroddiad y Swyddog, fod yr Ail-
broffiio o Raglen SATC a Rhaglen Cyfalaf Cyfrif Refeniw Tai 2017/18 yn cael ei
gymeradwyo.

CYFALAF ADDYSG 2017/18

Roedd yr adroddiad yn gofyn am gymeradwyaeth ar gyfer y cynigion ar gyfer y Rhaglen
Gyfalaf Addysg 2017/18 a chynigion a nodwyd ar gyfer dyrannu Cyllidebau Cyfalaf ar gyfer y
flwyddyn ariannol 2017/18 yng nghyd-destun y rhaglen gyfalaf 3 blynedd 2016/17 - 2018/19.

Nodwyd bod yna bwysau cyllideb barhaol mewn perthynas & gwaith trydanol parhaus o fewn
ysgolion a dyrannwyd swm ychwanegol o £2 miliwn, dros gyfnod o 3 blynedd 2014/15 -
2016/17 ac a ariennir o gyllidebau Rheoli Asedau, lechyd a Diogelwch a Diogelwch yr Ysgol
ac Ailosod Boeler, fodd bynnag, mae'r gweithfeydd hyn yn dod ymlaen yn dda.

Nododd y Cabinet y cynigion manwl ar gyfer 2017/18, a oedd yn cynnwys Llety Ychwanegol,
Rheoli Asedau, lechyd a Diogelwch, Diogelwch yr Ysgol, Ailosod Boeler yr Ysgol a Chyllid
Refeniw/Cyfalaf, ac mae llawer ohonynt yn cael eu dyrannu ar sail gyllido 50/50 gyda'r ysgol
berthnasol ac yn cynnwys nifer o uwchraddion a gwelliannau i'r ysgolion.

Nodwyd y byddai'r cynigion yn eu cyfanrwydd yn ymrwymo mwy neu lai'r gyllideb gyfan sydd
Page 3



ar gael cyn dechrau'r fliwyddyn ariannol. Er mwyn darparu ar gyfer y ceisiadau flwyddyn ar
gyfer cyllido, argymhellir ariannu £100,000 gan gyllideb rheoli ysgolion yn lleol wrth gefn i
ychwanegu at y gyllideb 50/50.

Yn dilyn ystyriaeth a thrafodaeth, cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd bod yr argymhellion yn yr adroddiad yn
cael eu cymeradwyo. Cytunwyd ar hyn yn unfrydol drwy godi dwylo.

PENDERFYNWYD am y rhesymau a gynhwysir yn adroddiad y Swyddog fod:-

0] y cynigion i ddefnyddio’r cyllid Cyfalaf Addysg ar gyfer 2017/18, fel yr
amlinellwyd yn yr adroddiad i gael eu nodi;

(ii) y cynigion i atodi'r gyllideb 50/50 gyda chyfraniad o £100,000 cyfraniad gan
y cynllun Rheoli Ysgolion yn Lleol i gefnogi'r cynigion yn ystod y flwyddyn, i
gael eu cytuno.

YMGYNGHORIAD - TREFNIADAU MYNEDIAD ARFAETHEDIG 2018/19

Roedd yr adroddiad, a gafodd ei hystyried gan Bwyllgor Craffu Addysg am Fywyd ar 27ain
Chwefror 2017, yn gosod newidiadau arfaethedig i Drefniadau Mynediadau Ysgolion ar gyfer
y flwyddyn academaidd 2018/19.

Nodwyd bod y broses ymgynghori wedi dod i ben ar laf Mawrth 2017, ac, yn unol &'r Céd
Derbyn i Ysgolion (2013), mae'n rhaid i'r trefniadau derbyn gael eu penderfynu erbyn 15fed
Ebrill 2017. Nodwyd nad oes newidiadau arfaethedig i'r Trefniadau Mynediad a atodwyd i'r
adroddiad.

Cafwyd trafodaeth i ddilyn a chymeradwyodd yr Aelodau gwaith yr Adran, yn enwedig yng
ngoleuni'r cau Ysgol Uwchradd Cwmcarn, ac nad oes unrhyw gynigion i newid y dalgylchoedd
ac ar hyn o bryd nid oes digon o gapasiti ar gyfer niferoedd derbyn. Yn ogystal, nododd y
Cabinet ar 28ain Chwefror 2017, cafodd 4500 o lythyron eu hanfon at rieni sydd wedi gwneud
cais i gael derbyniad ac mae pob plentyn y mae ei riant wedi gwneud cais erbyn y dyddiad
cau ar gyfer eu hysgol dalgylch wedi cael cynnig lle ar gyfer mis Medi 2017.

Yn dilyn ystyriaeth a thrafodaeth, cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd bod yr argymhelliad yn yr adroddiad yn
cael ei gymeradwyo. Cytunwyd ar hyn yn unfrydol drwy godi dwylo.

PENDERFYNWYD am y rhesymau a gynhwysir yn adroddiad y Swyddog i
gymeradwyo’r Trefniadau Mynediad Arfaethedig ar gyfer 2018/2019.

YMGYNGHORIAD — CYNNIG | SEFYDLU YSGOL 3 - 18 RHYMNI

Roedd yr adroddiad, a gafodd ei ystyried gan Bwyllgor Craffu Addysg am Fywyd ar 27ain
Chwefror 2017, yn amlinellu’r cynigion fel rhan o’r broses ymgynghori.

Atgoffwyd yr aelodau fod, yn ei gyfarfod ar 30ain Tachwedd 2016, cytunodd y Cabinet i
barhau gyda’r broses ymgynghori ffurfiol a gynhaliwyd rhwng y 3ydd lonawr 2017, a'r 16eg
Chwefror 2017, drwy gyfres o gyfarfodydd.

Nodwyd fod 13 ymateb ysgrifenedig wedi cael eu derbyn (3 o blaid o’r cynnig gyda 7 yn erbyn
a 3 nad oedd yn teimlo’n gryf naill ffordd neu'r llall). Roedd yr ymatebion yn gyson i raddau
helaeth gyda’r rhai a amlinellwyd yn ystod y cyfarfodydd ymgynghori ac yn cynnwys pryderon
megis llwybrau diogel i ysgolion, cymysgu plant o'r ddwy ysgol, llwyddiant dros 3-18 o
ysgolion yng Nghymru ac Addysgu ar draws ystod o oedran. Cafodd y prif faterion a godwyd
yn ysgrifenedig ac ar lafar eu crynhoi, gan gynnwys llawer nad oeddent yn ymwneud yn
uniongyrchol &'r ysgol 3-18, gan gynnwys meini prawf pellter.

Page 4



10.

Nododd Cabinet rai o fanteision cyfleuster 3-18 oedd yn cynnwys mynediad i ddisgyblion
cynradd i'r cyfleusterau gwych yn yr ysgol uwchradd (labordai gwyddoniaeth, cyfleusterau
chwaraeon ayb) ac effaith llai o drosglwyddo disgyblion o'r ysgol Gynradd i'r ysgol Uwchradd.
Yn ogystal, cyfeiriwyd Aelodau at Atodiad 2 o’r adroddiad, a oedd yn uwcholeuo barn Estyn
mewn perthynas &'r cynnig, gan nodi nad oedd unrhyw wrthwynebiad gan yr Arolygiaeth.

Yn dilyn ystyriaeth a thrafodaeth, cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd bod yr argymhelliad yn yr adroddiad yn
cael ei gymeradwyo. Cytunwyd ar hyn yn unfrydol drwy godi dwylo.

PENDERFYNWYD am y rhesymau yn adroddiad y Swyddog ac wrth nodi'r
sylwadau gan y Pwyllgor Craffu Addysg Gydol Oes a’r broses ymgynghoriy cytunwyd i
symud i Hysbysiad Statudol.

CYNNIG GOFAL PLANT GWEITHREDIAD CYNNAR

Roedd yr adroddiad yn gofyn am gefnogaeth y Cabinet i gymryd rhan yng Nghynllun
Gweithredwyr Cynnar Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer ardal cynllunio gymunedol arfaethedig
Dwyrain Canol y Cymoedd.

Yn 2016, fe wnaeth Maniffesto Llywodraeth Cymru (LIC) lansio cynnig Gofal Plant newydd o
30 awr o ofal plant ac addysg gynnar am hyd at 48 wythnos y flwyddyn, ar gyfer rhieni plant 3
a 4 oed sy'n gweithio. Yn dilyn gwybodaeth fwy manwl am yr ardaloedd awdurdod lleol yn' y
peilot cychwynnol a gynlluniwyd ar gyfer mis Medi 2017, gofynnwyd i Gaerffili fel ardal
ychwanegol i ymuno & gweithrediad cynnar cychwynnol y cynnig.

Mae LIC yn cydnabod bod gofal plant yn un o'r heriau mwyaf sy'n wynebu teuluoedd sy'n
gweithio yng Nghymru, ac mae datblygu cynnig gofal plant cyfoethocach yw'r brif flaenoriaeth.
Mae cefnogi teuluoedd gyda gofal plant hyblyg a fforddiadwy o ansawdd uchel yn cefnogi
adfywio economaidd, gall leihau'r pwysau ar incwm y teulu a helpu rhieni i gymryd rhan mewn
gwaith, gan leihau'r risg y teulu o dlodi. Mae hefyd yn cefnogi lles plant drwy brofiadau
cadarnhaol a gofal plant cyfoethog.

Nodwyd bod Llywodraeth Cymru yn bwriadu darparu 30 awr o addysg gynnar a gofal plant a
ariennir yr wythnos, ar gyfer rhieni plant 3 a 4 oed sy’n gweithio, am hyd at 48 awr y flwyddyn
erbyn diwedd eu cyfnod yn y Llywodraeth 2020/21 ac mae Caerffili wedi'u gwahodd yn
ddiweddar i ymuno a'r Gweithredwyr Cynnar ar gyfer y cynnig Gofal Plant i ddechrau
gweithredu ym mis Medi 2017.

Yn dilyn ystyriaeth fanwl, Cafodd Dwyrain Canol y Cymoedd ei ddewis fel yr ardal gynllunio
gymunedol i nodi dalgylchoedd yr ysgolion i fod yn rhan o'r cynllun. Mae hyn oherwydd bod
gan yr ardal ddigon o ddarpariaeth gofal plant sy'n bodoli eisoes, nifer sylweddol o deuluoedd
sy'n gweithio a fyddai'n gymwys i fanteisio ar y cynnig gofal plant hwn, 17 o ysgolion cynradd
yn y Saesneg a'r Gymraeg yn cynnig darpariaeth y Cyfnod Sylfaen Meithrin, 4 lleoliad gofal
plant nas cynhelir sy'n cynnig lleoedd addysg gynnar cyfhod sylfaen (3 Cyfrwng Cymraeg ac 1
Cyfrwng Saesneg) yn ogystal & 7 dalgylch Dechrau'n Deg, a allai gefnogi'r rhai sy'n dioddef
anfantais i fanteisio ar gyfleoedd cyflogaeth, os yw costau gofal plant wedyn symud fel
rhwystr. Mae gan Dwyrain Canol y Cymoedd gymysgedd o economiau gwledig a chanol tref
ac felly byddai'n profi materion cludiant yn cysylltu darpariaeth gofal plant at y ddarpariaeth
cyfnod sylfaenol lleol.

Yn dilyn ystyriaeth a thrafodaeth, cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd bod yr argymhelliad yn yr adroddiad yn
cael ei gymeradwyo. Cytunwyd ar hyn yn unfrydol drwy godi dwylo.

PENDERFYNWYD am y rhesymau a gynhwysir yn adroddiad y Swyddog, y dylid
cytuno fod yr ardal gynllunio Cymunedol arfaethedig o Dwyrain Canol y Cymoedd i
gael ei gyflwyno ar gyfer cynhwysiad yng nghynnig Gweithredwyr Cynnal Llywodraeth

Page 5



11.

Cymru.

RHAGLEN FLAENGYNLLUNIO GWAITH Y CABINET.

Roedd yr adroddiad yn ceisio cadarnhad Blaen Raglen Waith y Cyngor am gyfnod o Ebirill
2017 i Fehefin 2017. Gofynnwyd i aelodau nodi fod, ers ei gyhoeddiad, nifer o newidiadau i
Flaen Raglen Waith y Cabinet, a oedd yn cynnwys canslor cyfarfod a symudiad yr
adroddiadau.

Diolchodd y Cabinet i'r Swyddog am yr adroddiad a’r diweddariad llafar a chytunwyd y dylai'r
fersiwn diweddaraf, fel y cyflwynwyd yn y cyfarfod, gael ei gyhoeddi ar wefan y Cyngor.

Yn dilyn ystyriaeth a thrafodaeth, cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd bod yr argymhelliad yn yr adroddiad yn
cael ei gymeradwyo. Cytunwyd ar hyn yn unfrydol drwy godi dwylo.

PENDERFYNWYD am y rhesymau a gynhwysir yn adroddiad y Swyddog, a thrwy

nodirt newidiadau a amlinellwyd yn y cyfarfod, i gymeradwyo Blaenraglen Waith vy
Cabinet.

Terfynwyd y cyfarfod am 2.50 p.m.

Cymeradwywyd a llofnodwyd fel cofnod cywir yn amodol ar unrhyw gywiriadau a wneir yn y
cyfarfod a gynhelir ar 22ain Mawrth, 2017.

CADEIRYDD

Page 6



Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 4

Future Generations Advisory Panel

W
CAERPHILLY

COUINTY BOROLE EPEFNCFLE
CYNGODOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

FUTURE GENERATIONS ADVISORY PANEL

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD AT PENALLTA HOUSE, TREDOMEN,
ON THURSDAY, 24TH NOVEMBER 2016 AT 5:00PM

PRESENT:
Councillors:

D. Havard, M. Adams, C. Elsbury, L. Jones, and J.A. Pritchard.

Together with:

Kathryn Peters (Corporate Policy Manager), Paul Cooke (Senior Policy Officer), Vicki Doyle
(Policy Officer) and Tracy Evans (Policy Officer).

Apologies for absence were received for Councillors K. James, K, Dawson, S. Kent and
C. Mann.

1. WELCOME AND DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

ClIr Havard welcomed attendees to the meeting. There were no declarations of interest made
at the beginning or during the course of the meeting.

2. MINUTES OF MEETING 29™ SEPTEMBER 2016

The minutes of the meeting of the 29™ September 2016 were agreed as an accurate record.

3. WELL-BEING FOR A SUSTAINABLE FUTURE CURRICULUM RESOURCE

Tracy Evans introduced the report, which details the development of a curriculum resource for
primary and secondary schools, that maps the 7 National Well-being Goals for Wales against
the aims of Education for Sustainable Development and Global Citizenship (ESDGC), and
links into the Literacy and Numeracy Framework, Eco Schools, Healthy Schools and Fairtrade
Schools.

The resource includes suggestions for curriculum and extra curricular activities to highlight the
linkages between the existing school resources and the new legislation. It evidences to
schools that they are able to link the Well-being Goals for Wales into their existing work plans
with relative ease. Should schools wish to embed them in activities the linkages are
achievable, not too onerous, and highlight that the various streams are inter-connected and
should not be looked at in isolation.

Page 7



Future Generations Advisory Panel

The resource asks schools to consider what the goals mean to them. It asks them to think
about what they could do to achieve the goals and how they could change the way they work
to help achieve them. The resource also details the five ways of working (the sustainable
development principle) and provides suggestions for how they can achieve these also, to help
them think about what they currently do and how they can change to working in a sustainable
way.

The resource makes reference to the proposed new curriculum following the Donaldson
Review, while the outcome of the Review is, as yet, not clear it provided and opportunity to
align the new curriculum with the Well-being of Future Generations Act requirements.

Tracy noted that the resource will be now be sent to Education & Lifelong Learning for
comment and approval. It will then be translated into Welsh and circulated to all schools
within the county borough. Support with using the resource will be offered to all schools,
either on an individual basis or cluster basis, to ensure that every school in the county
borough is working towards achieving the seven well-being goals in line with the sustainable
development principle and five ways of working.

ClIr Pritchard thought that the resource was a very good piece of work and congratulated
Tracy on the production of it.

ClIr Jones asked whether schools would be able to receive some form of award if they could
demonstrate they met all the well-being goals. Tracy responded that this was something we
could consider.

TALKING FUTURE GENERATIONS

Paul Cooke introduced the ‘Talking Future Generations’ report from the Future Generations
Commissioner, which summarises what she has been doing since starting in post. She has
met with all 44 public bodies covered by the Act, Cabinet Secretaries, third sector leaders and
a range of experts. She has also held a series of meetings throughout Wales, which have
been attended by several hundred people, who talked about the big issues in their
communities and how the Act can facilitate positive change and encourage community
involvement.

Based on these discussions she has identified a number of potential priority issues,
summarised below:

Early years, with a particular focus on Adverse Childhood Experiences and on childcare
Economic prosperity, including challenges around employment and skills

Future trends, including population trends such as an ageing population

Climate change, environmental resilience and energy generation

Poverty, deprivation and disengagement

Interconnectivity, including an integrated approach to City Region deals, M4 relief road,
metro system and community infrastructure

Rural infrastructure and the future of farming

¢ Health inequalities with a particular focus on preventative healthcare

Community resilience, with a focus on language and identity, physical infrastructure and
affordable housing

It was noted that at the South East Wales Stakeholder Event on 4™ July 2016 at Butetown
Community Centre, the big issues were identified as:

e Reconnecting communities
o People need to feel engaged and connected — new, innovative ways as many
people have ‘consultation jaundice’

Page 8



Future Generations Advisory Panel

o Engagement can’t be a one off — people need to understand the difference their
input has made and how outcomes link to well-being goals

o Engagement should include mapping all determinants that enable people and
communities to cope with key issues

o Recent referendum vote shows there is a big need to reconnect decision makers
and communities, and combat distrust and apathy

e City Region and community planning/infrastructure

o City Deal and planning decisions that it influences must be tested against the WFG
Act

o Local development planning should take account of a range of needs including
housing, infrastructure, services and biodiversity

o Risk of generic plans and solutions that are not meaningful at the very local level —
the role of community councils and community asset transfers shouldn’t be
underestimated

o Community resilience should be built through self-sufficient approaches,
particularly in relation to food production

e Employment and population trends

o Lack of employment opportunities and high numbers of NEETS, and jobs being
created that will not lead to improved well-being i.e. low-paid

o Financial poverty is limiting people’s choices and opportunities, leading to
widespread dissatisfaction

o Poverty of education, aspiration, resources, voice and opportunity

o Wider issues about ageing population, including recognising the skills and
contributions of older generations

¢ Information sharing
o More information sharing, including information on benefits and best practice
o Pooling of resources toward the development of specific local community plans
would help give a framework to PSB’s on what is required to make plans real

Paul noted that it was interesting to compare what has been highlighted above with what is
coming out of our community engagement for the well-being assessment, as many of the
issues are the same.

Cllr Pritchard commented that she was disappointed with the lack of reference to health
issues. She noted the focus on inequalities, but felt that issues of the ageing population,
increased need for hospital and community care, plus social care, were very important.

CAERPHILLY PUBLIC SERVICES BOARD ASSESSMENT OF LOCAL WELL-BEING

Kathryn Peters introduced the Well-being Assessment , and explained that this is a Public
Services Board assessment that encompasses all the work and community engagement that
the Corporate Policy Unit has undertaken in conjunction with partners over the summer.

The assessment considers statistical data, the views of experts and what our communities
have told us through the engagement work we have done, both in terms of geographical
communities and also communities of interest, such as the Business Forum. Kathryn noted
that the draft assessment would be presented to the Public Services Board for approval at its
meeting on 6™ December. Following approval it will be sent out to the list of statutory
consultees listed in the WFG Act, Elected Members, partner organisations, the Future
Generations Commissioner, people and organisations that took part in the engagement work
etc. Reference to the document will also be made via the Council’s and partner organisations’
social media channels.

Page 9



Future Generations Advisory Panel

Kathryn also explained that work will continue to start pulling together the issues that we need
to investigate in more detail, which will inform the development of the well-being objectives for
the PSB and ultimately the Well-being Plan.

ClIr Elsbury made reference to the predicted trends for climate change and how startling these
are. Cllr Havard asked about the source of this information, and Paul explained that it was
from the UK Climate Projections (UKCP09) based on climate modelling undertaken by the
Met Office’s Hadley Centre.

ClIr Pritchard suggested that it was difficult to get people to think about the big issues like
climate change — they tend to focus on more local things like parking problems, dog fouling
and litter. Paul noted that it will be for the PSB to decided what their priorities will be moving
forward, which should be informed by what is coming out of the assessment and what can be
achieved through collaborative action

It was agreed that a printed copy of the Well-being Assessment is placed in the Members’
Library once the document has been signed off by the PSB.

FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME 2016/17

Kathryn explained that the Corporate Policy Team has interviewed a number of local residents
about what well-being means to them. A video has been made from these interviews, and

this will be shown at the next FGAP meeting.

It was suggested that the date of the meeting planned for 20" April may need to be
rearranged, as it was very close to the Local Government Elections.

ClIr Pritchard suggested that FGAP receive a presentation on the collaborative developments
between the Health Service, Social Services and the Ambulance Service.

Cllr Havard raised the issue of using Free Schools Meals as a descriptor of children/poverty,
and suggested there needs to be another way of describing disadvantaged children.

Members had a brief discussion around procurement issues and the need to encourage
people to buy locally. It was agreed that Liz Lucas be asked to attend a future meeting.

The meeting closed at 6:15pm.

Approved and signed as a correct record subject to any amendments being recorded in the
minutes of the meeting held on 19" January 2017.

CHAIRMAN

Page 10



Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 5

R
CAERPHILLY

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

CABINET - 29TH MARCH 2017

SUBJECT: OCCUPATIONAL ROAD RISK POLICY

REPORT BY: ACTING DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE SERVICES AND SECTION 151
OFFICER

1.1 The attached report for Cabinet on 29th March 2017 will be considered by the Special
meeting of the Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee on 27th March 2017. The views
expressed by the Scrutiny Committee will be reported verbally to Cabinet.

Author: R. Barrett, Committee Services Officer, Ext. 4245

Appendices:
Appendix Report to Cabinet on 29th March 2017 — Occupational Road Risk Policy

Page 11



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 12



‘ APPENDIX
CAERPHILLY

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
>

CABINET - 29TH MARCH 2017

SUBJECT: OCCUPATIONAL ROAD RISK POLICY

REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR - COMMUNITIES

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 To advise Cabinet of the content of the above policy and to recommend formal adoption by
the Authority.

2. SUMMARY

2.1 Officers have been working over the last 12-18 months to develop an Occupational Road Risk
Policy for the Authority.

2.2  The development of the policy has involved consultation with key officers from the areas of the
Authority that are major users of vehicles to deliver their services.

2.3 The draft policy has been considered by the Authority’s HR Strategy Group, has been the
subject of consultation with Trade Unions and has been considered by Corporate
Management Team.

2.4  This report outlines the contents of the policy and seeks Cabinet approval for the Authority to
formally adopt it.

3. LINKS TO STRATEGY

3.1 The Community & Leisure Divisional Service Plan contains a number of aims relating to fleet
management and maintenance, the safe operations of the Authority’s fleet of vehicles and
improving driver safety. The development and adoption of this new Occupational Road Risk
Policy is integral to achieving these aims.

3.2  The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 is about improving the social,
economic, environmental and cultural well-being of Wales. It requires public bodies to think
more about the long-term, working with people and communities, looking to prevent problems
and take a more joined up approach. This will create a Wales that we all want to live in, now
and in the future. The Act puts in place 7 well-being goals and the content of this report links
into 3, i.e. “a more resilient Wales, a healthier Wales, a globally responsible Wales”.

4, THE REPORT

4.1 The Authority’s biggest asset is its workforce and the tools that they use to deliver services

and undertake their duties safely. The Occupational Road Risk Policy aims to support the
Authority’s workforce, its Chief Officers, Directors and anyone with line-management or

Page 13



4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

supervisory responsibility in delivering high standards of safety in relation to driving at work.

The policy is not intended to be prescriptive but to provide guidance information and advice
for managers and employees of the Authority. The aim is for the policy to assist them, flexibly
and sensibly, to recognise, reduce and respond to the risks posed by travelling on Council
business. Employees and Elected Members driving from home to their place of work are
deemed to be commuting which is not covered by the policy. However, the policy covers
workers travelling direct to site from home when in a Council vehicle. The policy does not
cover the use of private cars for Council business (so-called “grey fleet”).

The policy (and its resultant appendices) are attached to this report and contains 7 sections
as follows:

Introduction

Scope of Policy

Purpose of Policy

Legislative requirements

Policy Detall

Key Organisational Responsibilities

Appendices (Driver Handbook, Vehicle Management Information Systems Privacy
Impact Assessment & Vehicle Management Information Authorisation form),

The Policy Detail section, sets out how the Authority will discharge its duties to introduce and
include safe systems of work for those undertaking driving and outlines processes for
inspecting driving licences, driving assessments, maintenance of a driver register, issue and
update of the drivers handbook, maintenance of vehicles, accident and incident reporting, use
of vehicle management information (VMI) systems and driver training.

The Key Organisational Responsibilities section clearly sets out the responsibilities of the
Chief Executive, Risk/Insurance Manager, Directors/Heads of Service, the Authority’s Fleet
Manager, Operational Managers & Employees.

A number of consultation meetings were held with the relevant Trade Unions and the most
significant discussion point related to the type of and use of Vehicle Management Information
(VMI) Systems.

An agreement has been reached with the Trade Unions to limit the use of VMI information
systems at this stage to:-

Vehicle Tracking

External 360°camera systems

Digital Tachographs (an existing legal requirement)

Specific service technologies eg: salt spread monitoring systems, gulley emptying
monitoring systems.

However, it has been agreed with the Trade Unions that the use of any new/additional VMI
systems will be the subject of a new consultation exercise before they are implemented.

The use of VMI systems is supported by a Privacy Impact Assessment (PIA) which has been
developed by the Authority’s Corporate Information Governance Unit.

The PIA clearly sets out the purposes for which VMI systems will be used, discusses

information flows, access to data controls and retention of data. The PIA has also been the
subject of consultation with the Trade Unions.

Page 14



5.1

6.1

7.1

8.1

9.1

10.

10.1

11.

111

12.

12.1

WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS
This report contributes to the wellbeing goals as set out in the Links to Strategy section above.
0] A Resilient Wales - The policy aims to ensure that our managers and employees are

equipped with the skills and technologies to ensure that service delivery is low risk,
future-proofed and efficient.

(ii) A Healthier Wales - The primary aim of the policy is to reduce risk, improve safety and
prevent accidents/incidents.

(iii) A Globally Responsible Wales — In addition to improving safety and reducing risk,
improved driver training and driver behaviour can have positive effects on fuel usage
and vehicle emissions.

EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS

There are no potential equalities implications associated with this report for any specific
groups or individuals therefore a full Equalities Impact Assessment has not been carried out.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no financial implications associated with this report.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

There are no significant personnel implications associated with this report although the use of
VMI Systems can be beneficial in protecting employees from spurious incident claims. VMI
Systems could also assist Managers in incident investigation and will assist in the day-to-day,
effective management of Council services. Information from VMI Systems may also assist in
the application of the range of HR policies which are used to assist in the effective

management of the Authority’s staff. This principle has been accepted by the Trade Unions
through the consultation process and is covered in the PIA.

CONSULTATIONS

The report reflects the views of the listed consultees.

RECOMMENDATIONS

Cabinet are asked to agree the adoption of the Operational Road Risk Policy.

REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS

To provide an over-arching policy which will assist the Authority in recognising and reducing
risks posed by occupational driving.

STATUTORY POWER

Local Government Acts, Health & Safety at Work Act 1974, Management of Health & Safety
at Work Act 1999, Road Traffic Act 1989, Data Protection Act 1998.

Page 15



Author: Mark S. Williams, Head of Community & Leisure Services
Telephone: 01495 235070 — e-mail: willims@caerphilly.gov.uk
Consultees: Councillor Nigel George, Cabinet Member — Community & Leisure Services
Christina Harrhy, Corporate Director — Communities
Lynne Donovan, Acting Head of Human Resources and Organisational
Development
E. Mary Powell, Fleet & Vehicle Maintenance Manager
Gail Williams, Interim Head of Legal Services & Monitoring Officer
Joanne Jones, Corporate Information Governance Manager

Background Papers:
Appendices:

Appendix 1  Occupational Road Risk Policy and its associated appendices (Drivers Handbook, VMI
Systems PIA, VMI Authorisation form).

Page 16



R )
A greener place Man gwyrddach LAERPHILLY
¥ 5 vy ERERFFILT

A /

APPENDIX 1

Occupational Road Risk Policy

January 2017

Occupational Road Risk Policy 2015

Page 17 Page |1



W
CAERPHILLY
A greener place  Man gwyrddach é‘méﬁ?mif?

A —— /
CONTENT
Page No
(s)
1.0. Introduction 3
2.0. Scope of Policy 3
3.0. Purpose of the Policy 4
4.0. Legislative Requirements 5
5.0. Our Policy 5
6.0. Key Organisational Responsibilities 6
7.0. Appendices - Drivers Hand Book

Occupational Road Risk Policy 2015

Pagel8 Page |2




A greener place  Man gwyrddach Ry A

L ———— /

1.0.

2.0.

Introduction

Caerphilly County Borough Council's Fleet Management and Risk
Management Sections recognise their responsibility to Manage Occupational
Road Risk and therefore have collectively developed this policy as part of
their commitment to reducing Road Traffic casualties, improving quality of life
and meeting a range of statutory requirements.

CCBC recognised that its most valuable assets are its workforce & the tools
required for them to undertake their duties safely, and as a result, this policy
endeavours to manage and control occupational road risk by raising
awareness of those risks by good management practice.

Scope of Policy

This Policy aims to support the Authority’s workforce, its Chief Officers,
Directors and anyone with line-management or supervisory responsibility in
delivering high standards of Safety in relation to driving at work, and applies to
the following categories of work.

Fleet Vehicles

Leased Vehicles

Hired or Contract Hired Vehicles
Demonstration Vehicles

Pool Cars

This policy is also supported by:

Drivers Hand Book (Appendix 1)

Risk Management Policies

Relevant Health and Safety Policies

Relevant Personnel Policies

Terms and Conditions of Employment

The Management of Health and Safety Regulations 1999
Policy on use of Hand-held mobile phones

Date Protection Policy

The policy is not intended to be prescriptive but to provide guidance,
information and advice for managers and employees of CCBC. The aim is for
the policy to assist them, flexibly and sensibly, to recognise, reduce and deal
with the risks posed to employees and volunteers while they are travelling on

Occupational Road Risk Policy 2015

Page 19 Page |3



A greener place Man gwyrddach ST R R G I
g P gwy ¥ 4%

A — /

3.0.

council business. Employees and Elected Members driving from home to the
place of work are deemed to be commuting which is not covered by this
policy. However, the policy covers workers travelling direct to site from home
when in a Council Vehicle

This policy applies to all council employees, including elected members who
drive council owned/leased or hired vehicles and those who travel while at
work on council business driving council owned/leased or hired vehicles. The
council also has a duty of care to all stakeholders who need to travel while on
duty for Caerphilly County Borough Council. The policy does not cover the
use of private cars for Council business (“grey fleet”).

Purpose of the Policy
Approximately 30% of all fatal road crashes involve people who are at work.

Not managing Occupational Road Risk well can have a number of effects on
the Council including:

e Loss of staff, absenteeism because of injuries, and less productivity.
e Loss of, or damage to, vehicles and other property.

e Increased insurance costs, e.g., vehicle repairs or replacements.

e Compensation claims and increased motor insurance premiums.

e Action by the enforcing authorities, e.g., the HSE or the police.

This policy reinforces and introduces features specific to driving whilst at work
such as:

e Driving-related risk assessments.

e Verification of legal entitlement to drive.

e Assessing suitability of vehicles used at work.

e Checking of key documents.

e Use of mobile phones.

e Save and fuel efficient driving.

e Improving the efficiency of services and reliant on fleet for delivery.
¢ Repudiating false allegations and claims against drivers.

These features are designed with the safety of drivers and passengers in
mind and to make sure managers remain aware of the key issues.

Occupational Road Risk Policy 2015

Page 20 Page |4



A greener place  Man gwyrddach Ry A

A — /

The government has set a target to reduce road traffic accidents by 2020, and
part of this initiative is aimed at people who drive council owned/leased
vehicles as part of their work. Caerphilly County Borough Council has
responded by developing this Occupational Road Risk Policy to help drivers
and anyone with line management or supervisory responsibility to be more
aware of, and thereby reduce, the risks associated with driving.

4.0. Legislative Requirements

In addition to the general day-to-day responsibilities of the Council, Caerphilly
County Borough Council is bound by many legislative requirements in
particular those indicated below.

The Health and Safety at Work Act 1974 requires employers to ensure, so
far as is reasonably practicable, the Health and Safety of all employees and
others who may be affected by work activities such as driving.

The Management of Health and Safety at Work Act 1999 imposes a duty
on employers to undertake suitable and sufficient assessments of work
activities such as driving if there is a reasonably foreseeable risk of injury or
ill-health.

The Provision of Use of Work Equipment Regulations 1998 requires
employers to provide information, instruction and training to relevant
employees on the safe use of equipment such as vehicles. The regulation
also requires work equipment such as vehicles and associated equipment to
be inspected and maintained to ensure their safe use.

Terms and Conditions of the Authority’s Operators’ Licence require that
the named Operators will uphold the Terms and Conditions of this licence with
regard to Vehicle Maintenance; Defect Reporting; Driving Hours; and the Safe
Loading of Vehicles.

Transport Rules and Regulations require all Road Transport Rules and
Regulations to be adhered to, and where offences are committed appropriate
action is taken to ensure as far as is reasonably practicable, that such
offences do not occur in future.  This will include but is not limited to:

e Highway Code

e Road Traffic Act 1989

e AETR and Domestic Driving Rules

Occupational Road Risk Policy 2015

Page21 Page |5



W
A greener place  Man gwyrddach CAERPHILLY
° 2 i ERERFFILT

A — /

5.0.

Regulations as Laid Down in the Chapter 8 Code of Practice

Terms and Conditions laid down in the Authority’s Operator’s Licence
Use of VMI systems has an effect on individuals whether they are
operators/drivers of the vehicles or members of the public caught on
CCTV. The Data Protection Act 1998 provides protection for
personal information relating to living individuals while the Human
Rights Act 1998, article 8 provides for the right to private and family
life, home and correspondence.

Our Policy

In recognition of the Council’'s Legal and moral obligations for ensuring driver

safety,

Caerphilly County Borough Council actively seeks to take all

reasonably practical measures to ensure safe systems of work are provided to
those undertaking driving activities as part of their employment.

As an extension to this obligation the Council aims to provide a systematic
and planned approach to road safety through a process of continuous
improvement with the overall objective of achieving the highest standards of
occupational road safety.

In discharging these duties the authority will ensure that

>

Verification of Legal Entitlement to Drive initially by Manual Inspection
of Driving Licences; followed by DVLA periodic electronic checks
determined by risk posed by the driver. These checks are made on the
basis of driver consent which is renewed periodically.

All drivers prior to driving council owned/leased vehicles on Council
business will undergo a robust Driving Assessment, and any
recommendation resulting will be implemented and documented.

A register of successfully assessed drivers will be kept and only those
drivers on this register will be authorised to drive council vehicles up to
their assessed category.

Following successful assessment, and licence check by the Insurance
& Risk Management Department, the drivers details are entered onto
the Authority’s Drivers Register, and a drivers handbook is provided to
Drivers with all relevant information given

Work related driving activities are risk assessed with the objectives of
reducing road traffic accidents to the lowest level reasonably
practicable.

Occupational Road Risk Policy 2015

PageZZ Page |6



Y
A greener place  Man gwyrddach CAERPHILLY
° 2 i ERERFFILT

A — /

> Fleet Vehicles used in the course of Council activities are appropriately
maintained and fit for purpose.

» Arrangements are put in place to ensure the reporting, recording and
investigating of all accidents and incidents from work related driving.
This will include the use of vehicle management systems as
appropriate (eg: vehicle tracking systems, vehicle camera systems,
digital tachographs, etc). The use of such systems will be in
accordance with the Vehicle Management Systems Privacy Impact
Assessment.

» Adequate arrangements are in place to identify and implement
remedial actions following road traffic accidents.

» Arrangements are in place to ensure that all documents supporting this
policy are available to Chief Officers/Directors; Managers and Drivers.

In addition to these general aspects relating to the discharge of its duties, the
Authority will pay particular attention to the use of vehicle tracking/CCTV & driver

training.

Vehicle Management Information Systems (VMI Systems)

The Authority utilises Vehicle Management Information Systems (including: Tracking
systems, External 360 degree camera systems, digital tachographs, etc.) within its
fleet. These are installed to provide vehicle security and location identification;
vehicle management information and utilisation. These systems can assist in
maintaining and monitoring safety, protection of drivers from claims and improved
efficiencies within respective departments, VMI systems usage will be in accordance
with the VMI Systems Privacy Impact Assessment (attached at Appendix 2) and
access to data from VMI Systems will need to be requested via completion of the
VMI authorisation form (attached at appendix 3). This form requires a strict
authorisation process before VMI systems data can be accessed. In the event of
technological changes, market development of alternative VMI systems, requests to
use additional VMI systems by insurers, VOSA, HSE, etc then further consultation
with the relevant Trade Unions will be undertaken and the Privacy Impact
Assessment (PIA) updated accordingly. However there are particular
circumstances where technology is used to ensure a service is delivered. In areas
where technology is used to deliver a service, such as winter maintenance and
flooding response/gully inventory, there is a need to monitor the technology to
ensure that it is working safely, appropriately and recording the required data
(examples of this technology include monitoring the consistency of salt spreading in
winter maintenance operations). This is essential management information that can
be crucial to allow urgent responses during emergencies such as winter

Occupational Road Risk Policy 2015

Page 23 Page |7



W
A greener place  Man gwyrddach CAERPHILLY
° 2 i ERERFFILT

A — /

maintenance and flooding. Access to this information ensures protection for the
employee to ensure that they can be located for safety reasons and also assists in
allocating the most appropriate resource at times of emergency for speed of
response. It also allows officers to ensure that the technology utilised in the cabs is
working appropriately in assisting staff deliver the service. It is therefore essential
the allocated managers are provided access to this information as and when
necessary to assist and monitor service delivery. This access will not to be used to
routinely monitor and track staff.

Driver Training

All drivers prior to being included on the Driver's Register will undertake a full
comprehensive driving assessment. During this assessment a Risk Level is added
to each driver. This is based on any disciplinary penalties relevant to their driving
licence, disclosed medical conditions and driving style at the time of the assessment.

Where drivers are deemed to be high risk, they will not be added to the Driver's
Register until further Driver Training has been completed, and the corporately
appointed Driver / Trainer Assessor is satisfied that the level of driving is of a
sufficient standard to be added to the Drivers Register.

Drivers who drive vehicles in excess of 3.5 Tonne GVW are required to undertake
legislative Driver CPC Training. Drivers who do not hold a valid Driver CPC
Qualification Card are not permitted to drive vehicles over 3.5 tonne GVW. In
addition, Tool Box (“on the job” talks/advice) Talks are provided to drivers by
individual departments (where service needs deem this necessary) and by the Fleet
Manager / Driver Trainer-Assessor where areas of concerns are identified.

6.0. Key Organisational Responsibilities for this policy
6.1. Chief Executive / Risk and Insurance Manager

The Chief Executive along with the Risk and Insurance Manager has overall
responsibility for ensuring that:

» The Occupational Road Risk Policy will be implemented corporately with
the responsibility for the implementation within each service delegated to
the appropriate Director / Head of Service.

» Adequate resources are made available to ensure the Occupational Road
Risk Policy is implemented effectively

Occupational Road Risk Policy 2015

Page 24 Page |8



A greener place  Man gwyrddach Ry A

A — /

6.2.

6.3.

>

>
>

Periodic reviews of Safety performance are completed and results are
used to highlight specific areas that require improvement.

A register of authorised vehicle users is kept up to date.

A Privacy Impact Assessment (PIA) is developed with assistance from the
Council’'s Senior Information Risk Owner (SIRO) to cover any privacy
impacts of this policy. The PIA must be updated when new uses of
personal data are considered, and recommendations properly carried out.

Directors / Heads of Service

Directors and Heads of Service are responsible for ensuring that the
standards contained in the Occupational Road Risk Policy and supporting
documents are implemented effectively. In so doing they will ensure

>

>

Managers are fully aware of their roles and responsibilities in managing
occupational road risk;

Adequate resources are made available to ensure that the Occupational
Road Risk Policy is implemented effectively

Heads of Service, as Information Asset Owners, will assure the SIRO in
regular Information Risk Returns that any privacy impacts of this policy are
properly addressed.

Fleet Manager

The Council’s Fleet Manager has responsibility to ensure

>
>

The procurement of an appropriate fit for purpose fleet of vehicle
Compliance with the Authority’s Operators’ Licence and other legislative
requirements associated with the Fleet of Vehicles.

Management Systems, Drivers Handbook and other legislative information
are provided to Drivers following successful assessment.

Drivers are provided with sufficient information; instruction and training on
procedures established to minimise risk associated with work related
driving activities.

Necessary checks on documentation (electronic or paper based),
depending on risk, are undertaken for all employees who undertake work
related driving (NB: This does not apply to the “Grey” fleet).

Employees report medical conditions, which affect their ability to drive to
the Driver and Vehicle Licensing Agency (DVLA) and their line manager.

Occupational Road Risk Policy 2015

Page 25 Page |9



W
A greener place  Man gwyrddach CAERPHILLY
° 2 i ERERFFILT

A — /

6.4.

>
>

>

A register of fleet vehicles is kept up to date.

Heads of Service are notified of any road traffic offences that the Fleet
Manager is made aware of.

Evidence consideration of privacy impacts of any additional
technology/functions procured to support this policy, with advice from
Exemption Panel if needed.

Operational Managers

Operational Managers have a responsibility for ensuring the Health and
Safety of their employees and will ensure:

>

Appropriate Health and Safety Management arrangements are
implemented within their own area of the control in managing occupational
road risk.

That the health & safety arrangements comply with the occupational road
risk policy and other associated documents

Work related driving risks to employees and others are identified,
assessed and recorded and that suitable controls to reduce or eliminate
risk are implemented.

Employees are provided with sufficient information; instruction; training
and supervision on procedures established to minimise risk associated
with work related driving activities.

Employees are referred to Occupational Health and/or HR for advice on
fitness for work when a driver declares a Health Problem.

All accidents and incidents concerned with work related driving activities
are reported, recorded, investigated and monitored in accordance with the
Council’s policies to ensure that health and safety arrangements remain
relevant and effective and that appropriate support is provided to any
employee who has been involved in and/or injured in a work related driving
incident.

Thorough investigations are carried out immediately following notification
from the employee that they have been involved in any road traffic
accident or the commitment of any road traffic offence. This investigation
will be carried out in accordance with the Authority’s Disciplinary
Policy/Procedure. The Service Manager will notify the Fleet Manager of
the investigatory process and outcome of the investigation to enable
effective liaison with the Traffic Commissioner /VOSA in the event that the
requlatory body requests the relevant information.. Employees have been

Occupational Road Risk Policy 2015

PaQGZG Page |10



A greener place  Man gwyrddach Ry A

A — /

6.5.

instructed to report medical conditions, which affect their ability to drive to
the Driver and Vehicle Licensing Agency (DVLA)

» That their employee Road Safety Performance is included in their
Personal Development Review (PDR) where driving is a core part of their
activity.

» That their employees are listed on the Drivers Register and are therefore
authorised to drive council vehicles.

Employees

All employees have a responsibility to ensure:

>

They follow the procedures and arrangements established by
Management to ensure their Health and safety whilst undertaking work
related driving.

They patrticipate in any instruction or training required to ensure they are
driving safely at all times

Any unsafe situations, areas of concern or health issues affecting their
abilities to undertake their driving activities are brought to the attention of
their manager.

They give due consideration to their own safety and that of others who
may be affected when they undertake work related driving activities by
undertaking dynamic route risk assessments.

They comply with the requirements of the Highway Code and any other
associated legislation.

They report any accidents, incidents or offences that occur when
undertaking work related driving activities to their manager immediately, or
as soon as reasonably practicable following the accident, incident or
offence.

They report any offences outside work which may affect their ability to
drive in work.

They participate in any investigation following a work related driving
accident/incident in which they have been involved.

They sign an authorisation mandate allowing the authority to check their
licence electronically with the DLVA Database (subject to periodic
renewal). The also submit on request a copy of their full driving licence
for inspection.

All items carried on vehicles are adequately and safely secured using the
correct tools and/or strapping.

Occupational Road Risk Policy 2015

Page27 Page |11



A r I n VN AR T S W ITEPE PSS AT E T SR
greener place Man gwyrddach vy L

A /

7.0.

> All Driver's should be aware of their obligations when driving a Council
Owned/Operated Vehicle. They should also be aware that any additional
working activities outside of the Authority could impact upon their ability to
drive. It is therefore necessary that driver’'s keep adequate records of any
working activities they undertake, and present to their line manager in
order that they are aware of their full working activities. This is also a
requirement of the Authority’s Code of Conduct for Employees.

Appendices

Appendix 1: Drivers Handbook

Appendix 2: VMI Systems Privacy Impact Assessment (PIA)
Appendix 3: VMI Authorisation Form

Occupational Road Risk Policy 2015

Pa9828 Page |12



Appendix 1

An essential guide for employees 2016

R_Y
Man gwyrddach i fyw, gweithio ac ymweld CAERPHILLY

A greener place to live, work and VISIt CAERFFILY
Page 2 >




Drivers’ Handbook -
An essential guide for employees

CONTENTS PAGE
Part A - The Protocol 2
PartB - The Driver 6
PartC - TheVehicle 17
PartD - Operator’s Licence 24
PartE - Thelong Distance Journey 55
Index 39

Gaerphilly County Borough Gouncil  p 40 30



Part A - The Protocol

VEHICLE SAFETY POLICY STATEMENT

Caerphilly County Borough Council takes very seriously its duty
of care to its employees, the public and to others. It recognises it
has the responsibility to provide, as far as it is practicable, for the
safety of its employees and others who may be affected by the
operation of its vehicles on council duties.

As a result the Council has put in place a policy to ensure that
a consistent, co-ordinated standard is achieved to minimise
accidents, and therefore the risks to employees and public alike.

The Council has a policy of nil accident involvement. The
Council’s philosophy is that accidents are preventable and all
risks can be contained. Managers and employees are responsible
for the safe use of vehicles, the safety of fellow employees and
the safety of the general public and their property.

Drivers’ Handhook - Page 31




THE COUNCIL'S PROTOCOL ON MONITORING
OCCUPATIONAL ROAD RISK

Caerphilly council makes every effort to monitor and reduce
Road Risk.

This is done by undertaking Road Risk Assessments on journeys
that are undertaken on a continuous basis, example, Collection
of Domestic Refuse / Recyclable Items. Drivers are advised of
the Route they are to take and must not deviate from that route
unless under exceptional circumstances.

Also no employee is permitted to drive a Council Insured Vehicle
unless they have undertaken and successfully complete a Driver

Assessment. The Assessment will advise them of the type/size of
vehicle they are permitted to drive.

If an employee is required to drive a vehicle that falls outside of
the category they are permitted to drive, they must not do so,
without undertaking a further assessment for the appropriate
vehicle.

Caerphilly County Borough Gouncll  pgqe 32




Part A - The Protocol

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY

Management recognised its responsibilities to its employees by
endeavouring to ensure that safety is paramount by:-

» Provision of vehicles, machinery and plant adequate for the task to
be performed;

= A safe system within which to operate the vehicle;
= Adequate vehicle maintenance and repair facilities;

= Prompt attention to all repairs, servicing etc required as a result of
daily vehicle checks;

= Driver training on a group or individual basis as deemed necessary,
following assessment of each driver, records, analysis, evaluation of
accidents;

= |n conjunction with the fleet risk working group, to take any action
deemed necessary arising out of such evaluation.

= To properly utilise Vehicle Management Information (VMI) Systems.

= |tis also anticipated that the Vehicle Management Information
(VMI) System will be used by certain departments for planning and
allocating workloads.

It is anticipated that there will be regular reports produced and
supplied service managers. Examples of these are indicated below:-

= |dling Reporting

= Vehicle Used Out of Hours

= Vehicles used outside the county Borough
= Speeding Reports - in excess of 70mph

= Vehicles Not Used

Drivers’ Handbook - Page 33




Driver monitoring reports will be used on a regular basis to
identify any training needs. These could include harsh breaking;
heavy acceleration, poor cornering, accidents and excessive fuel
usage. These examples are not exhaustive and give an idea of
the type of VMI reports that can be generated.

DRIVER’S RESPONSIBILITY

Driver’s also have a responsibility for the vehicle in which they are
driving, the main responsibilities are:-

= To hold a valid full driving licence for the class of vehicle being
driven;

= To receive approved training in driving/operating the vehicle
under conditions in that they are likely to be driven/operated;

= To know what their responsibilities are;
= Not to drive for longer periods than legislated;

= To comply with the law at all times, not to drive whilst under
the influence of DRINK or drugs;

= To show courtesy and respect to other users of the road;
= To take care of their vehicle;

= To carry out all daily maintenance checks and complete the
daily defect report and log sheets; |

= To report all accidents and damage;

= To report any driving convictions whether on private or
council business.

Caerphilly Gounty Borough Gouncll  page 34




Part B - The Driver

LICENSING AND ASSESSMENTS

As a driver you are personally responsible for ensuring you
only drive vehicles that you are licensed to drive, and that you
do not drive any vehicle that falls outside the scope of the in-
house Driving Assessment you have undertaken. Should you
be required to drive a vehicle that falls outside the scope of
your assessment, your supervisor/section head must arrange
additional assessments on your behalf.

DRIVING LICENCE CHECKS

You will be required to provide a copy of your driver’s licence for
inspection, and give consent for the Council to undertake checks
via the DVLA on your driving record which can be checked as and
when necessary, but at a minimum of a yearly interval. This check
could be undertaken by the Fleet Manager, your line manager or
any other designated person. The mandate signed authorising
this check via the DVLA will remain valid for 2 years, whereby
further mandates will be forwarded to you for your authorisation
Failure to sign the mandate for the DVLA will result in you being
removed from the Driver’s Register.

USE OF VEHICLES

The vehicle that has been allocated to you is for use on Council
Business Only. The private use of Council owned, hired,

leased or demonstration vehicles are not permitted under any
circumstances whatsoever.

Drivers’ Handbook - Page 35




PRIVATE CARS USED ON OFFICIAL JOURNEYS

You may be requested to use your private car on official council
journey’s (for which reimbursement will be made) in order to
maintain service delivery. Driver's may without prejudice refuse
such requests, but should you accept this request you must
ensure you comply with the following conditions:-

= Appropriate business use on your car insurance;

= Your vehicle as a valid MOT Certificate;

= Your vehicle displays a valid VED Disc (Road Fund Licence Disk);

= Any necessary mileage incurred, will be paid for at the rate
authorised by Caerphilly County Borough Council. Claims
for reimbursement should be submitted as soon as possible
following the end of the claim period.

TRANSPORTATION OF HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES

Whilst on a small scale, the Council carries a number of
substances that could be hazardous such as poisons; cleaning
materials, gases, fuels, etc.

It is the responsibility of the Driver to ensure that he/she is aware
of the items they are carrying along with the SYPOL Assessment
or the appropriate safety data sheet that is available with the
substance.

S

POISON

Caerphilly County Borough Gouncll  p5qe 36




Part B - The Driver

Eyesight

It is a requirement that you are able to read a new style number
place from a distance of 20.5 metres (66 feet). This can be done
via the use of glasses or contact lenses, however, should you need
glasses or contact lenses to read number plate, they must be worn
at all times when driving.

l Medical Conditions
9 If you have been diagnosed with a medical condition, or have
Irst ai

a medical condition that has become worse since your licence
was issued, you have a legal obligation to notify the
DVLA Medical Unit, DVLA, Swansea SA99 1TU.

Failure to do so is a criminal offence and punishable by a fine up
to £1,000. You also have a duty to inform your line manager of any
condition that may affect your driving ability.

Drivers’ Handbhook - P age 37




You must inform the DVLA if you suffer or have suffered any
of the following conditions:-

Caerphilly Gounty Borough Council Page 38

Epilepsy (seizure or fits);

Sudden attacks of disabling giddiness, fainting or blackouts
Severe mental handicap;

Diabetes (controlled by insulin, tablets or diet);
Angina or any heart condition, heart attack or heart surgery;
Parkinson Disease;

Any other chronic neurological conditions, e.g. multiple
sclerosis, motor neurone disease;

A serious problem with memory, episodes of confusion;
Stroke (both major and minor);

Any type of brain surgery or brain tumour;

Severe head injury involving in-patient treatment at hospital;
Narcolepsy/sleep apnoea;

Any severe psychiatric illness or mental disorder, including
depression;

Continuing permanent difficulty in the use of your arms or
legs which affects your ability to control a vehicle;

Dependence on or misuse of alcohol, illicit drugs or chemical
substances in the past three years (excluding drink/driving
offences);

Any visual disability that affects both eyes (excluding short/
long sight or colour blindness);

Sight in only one eye or any visual problems
affecting either eye; "

Removal of cataracts.




Part B - The Driver

REPORTING OF ACCIDENTS

It is important that all accidents are reported, whether an injury
has occurred or not.

Accident to staff - these accidents should be reported to line
manager/supervisor or your office by telephone as soon as
possible following the accident.

boarding or alighting from a vehicle or is being conveyed to or
from the vehicle by means of vehicle equipment, e.g. carrying
chair, your line manager/supervisor or office should be informed
by telephone as soon as possible.

W Accident to clients - if accidents occur whilst client is on, is

Accident to vehicle equipment - this should be reported to
your line manager/supervisor by telephone as soon as possible
and brief details be included on your daily defect sheet.

STOP

POLICE

Drivers’ Handhook - Page 39




Reporting of Road Traffic Accidents — in all instances where one
of the Council’s vehicles is involved in an accident whereby:-

= any person or animal is injured;
= any vehicle is damaged;
= any property is damaged.

In all instances, the driver must stop at the scene of the accident.
The driver must fully complete the Motor Accident Card and give
to any police officer or other person having reasonable grounds
to ask for it:-

= his/her name and address;
= registration number of the vehicle;
= certificate of insurance number.

This is available from the
Fleet Management Section (01443) 873721
Risk Management Section (01443) 863259

The driver must not admit liability for an accident, but the
police must be given reasonable assistance.

Caerphilly Gounty Borough Councll  page 40




Part B - The Driver

THE DRIVER MUST -

If any person is injured and the police did not attend, report it
to the police within 24 hours;

Notify line manager / supervisor or deputy the same day of
the following morning in out of hours;

Complete a motor incident form within 24 hours of the
accident (these forms are available through their line manager
or from Risk Management Section at Ty Penallta);

Complete the accident assessment form with supervisor and
pass to Insurance Section within 48 hours of the accident.

When completing the form, particular attention should
be paid to -

Sketch plan of the scene of an accident should be as clear and as
fully documented as possible to include:

width of road;

position of vehicles involved and of any traffic;

any skid marks;

position of traffic signs, islands, turnings etc. in the vicinity;

full details of names, addresses of the owners and details of
the visual damage to all vehicles or property involved;

Drivers’ Handhook - Page 41




= Name, addresses, and vehicle details of all other parties
involved;

= Names and address of all witnesses inserted on form;
= Names and addresses of all injured persons inserted on form;

= |njuries to be clearly identified, i.e. it is not sufficient to
state under the column for injuries “bruised knee” — it must
be identified as “bruised right knee”; “bruised left knee” as
appropriate;

= Name and number of any police officer present.

PROSECUTIONS OR INTENDED PROSECUTIONS

Should a Notice of Intended Prosecution be received with
regards to any motoring offence that occur in a Council owned
vehicle, it is the responsibility of the driver concerned to
complete and return all documentation within the required time.
Any fines, penalties etc. will be the responsibility of the driver
concerned.

It is also the responsibility of the driver to notify the Fleet
Management Section of any pending prosecutions that occur
whilst driving their private vehicles that will impact upon the
legality of their driver’s licence.

Gaerphilly Gounty Borough Gouncil  page 42




&

&

Part B - The Driver

ALCOHOL, DRUGS AND MEDICATION

All employees who drive as part of their work have a duty to
ensure that they are fit to drive and are not:-

Under the influence of alcohol, irrespective of quantity - there is
no failsafe guide as to how much a person can drink and remain
under the national legal limit, the type and amount an individual
consumes, along with your body weight, gender, age and
metabolism, will affect your ability to drive.

Under the influence of drugs, illegal or recreational; or taking
any prescribed medication that could impair their ability to
safely drive a vehicle - driving whilst unfit through the misuse of
drugs (illegal, recreational or prescribed) is illegal. It affects your
judgement, co-ordination and ability to safely control a vehicle.

Should any employee have any doubt as to their fitness to drive
they must consult their line manager immediately. Please refer
to Section 6 and 7 the Authority’s Corporate Policy on Substance
Misuse.

Drivers’ Handbook - page 43




MOBILE PHONES

New legislation, introduced on 1 December 2003, makes it illegal
to use a hand held mobile phone whilst driving.

The Corporate Policy of Caerphilly County Borough Council is that
employees of the authority will:-

= Ensure that if the use a mobile phone for work purposes that
they do so in accordance with the Council’s policy on “Mobile
Phones and Driving;”

= Only use a hands free kit when safe to do so, as they can be
distracting, to contract an employee / driver via mobile phone
only if a matter of urgency and to keep the length of the call as
short as possible;

= Understand that they must have control of their vehicles at
all times, and can be prosecuted for careless, inconsiderate or
dangerous driving. If using a phone or other device (even if
hands-free) causes them to drive this way. Penalties for these
~ offences include £60 fixed penalty plus 3 penalty points on your
Driving Licence or up to £1000 on conviction in court (£2,500 for
driver’s of goods vehicles, buses or coaches).

Drivers still RISK PROSECUTION
(for failure to have proper control)
if they use hand-free phones when driving.

Caerphilly County Borough Gouncll  poge 44




| B - The Driver

SMOKING

April 2, 2007 saw the introduction of the “Smoke Free Premises
Regulations”. The Authorities “No Smoking Policy” also supports
this Regulation. The Regulation and Policy does not only relate to
premises, but also Council Owned or Operated Vehicle. Any driver
found to be Smoking in a Council Owned or Operated Vehicle, may
be faced with a Fixed Penalty Fine of £50.00.

SECURITY OF VEHICLE

It is the driver’s responsibility to ensure the security of the vehicle
and its contents. The driver must not, under any circumstances leave
the keys in the vehicle whilst he/she is away from the vehicle.

DRIVER CPC

Drivers that use their vocational driving licence for driving vehicles
in excess of 3.5T will be required to ensure they have a Driver CPC
gualification or must have completed 35 hours periodic training
before the 11th September, 2014. Following this date, drivers must
ensure they undertake a continuous 35 hours training over a

5 year period.

Drivers’ Handbook - Page 45




Part G - The Vehicle

VEHICLE CHECKS

It is a legal requirement to ensure that the vehicle you take onto the
road is in a fit and roadworthy condition, and as the driver is fully
responsible for it condition and suitability whilst on the road, it is

in your interest that all safety checks are undertaken and that your
vehicle is fit and legal to be on the road.

It is the Driver’s Legal Responsibility to undertake a safety check at
the start of the day, before the vehicle is used. Driver’s that will use
more than one vehicle in a working day should personally check all
vehicles they use.

Depending on the type of vehicle an individual drives, will depend
on the daily defect report they must complete, however, standard in
all of these reports, are safety aspects of the vehicle, such as:-

= Lights & Reflectors;

= Tyres & wheel nuts;

= Horn;

= Mirrors;

* Brakes;

= Windscreen and wipers;

= |Loads and ancillary equipment;
= First Aid Kit (if applicable).

Caerphilly County Borough Gouncll  page 46




Part C - The Vehicle

VEHICLE CHECKS (continued)

Other items will be included on your daily defect reporting form,
and these will vary from vehicle to vehicle - you must be provided
with the correct defect Reporting Form for the vehicle that you

drive.

SEAT BELTS

Seat Belts if fitted must be worn at all times when the vehicle is in
operation. Drivers of Passenger Carrying Vehicles must ensure that
all clients (including those in wheelchairs) and colleagues use the
seat/safety harnesses provided. Clients who refuse to be strapped
in after having matters explained to them must not be conveyed
unless they are in possession of a medical exemption certificate,
or we are in a possession of a signed indemnity - any client who
refuses to use the seat/safety harness must be reported to your line
manager/supervisor who will ensure that the matter is resolved.
Defects in, or shortages of, seat/safety harnesses must be reported

immediately to line manager/supervisor or office.

THEFT OF AND FROM VEHICLES

The theft of a Council Vehicle whether it is owned, hired or leased
must be reported to the Police, the Insurance and Risk Management
Section and Fleet Management immediately. Personal belongings
to include personal work equipment are not covered under the

Council’s Motor Insurance Policy.

The contents, load and security of the
vehicle is the responsibility of the Driver.

Page 47

s

NOTICE
Vehicles and
contents are left

here entirely at
owners risk




DAMAGE AND ABUSE TO VEHICLES

Thousands of pounds are being spent each year on vehicle repairs
arising from driver/user abuse e.g. Poor driving techniques, van
doors allowed to fly open distorting surrounds, doors slammed shut
with knees etc. Please ensure that your vehicle is not subjected to
this kind of abuse. |

Damage or abuse may also be caused to vehicles caused by
‘improper driving and use of vehicle and failure to carry out vehicle
checks. Such actions may be considered to be a disciplinary
offence. Any damage/defects found to vehicles must be reported
to your line manager and the Fleet Management Section in order
that they can arrange for appropriate repairs to be undertaken.

CARRYING OF LOADS ON VEHICLES

Drivers are responsible for the loading and unloading of vehicles
that they drive. It is the driver’s responsibility to ensure that a
vehicle is correctly loaded and within its legal carrying capacity.

It is also the driver’s responsibility to ensure that a load is properly
secured at the start and during the journey.

Should the driver notice that the load he is carrying appears
insecure, then he/she should find a safe place to stop the vehicle
and check and re-secure the load if necessary.

Caerphilly Gounty Borough Gouncll  pyge 48




Part € - The Vehicle

LOADING

The law requires a load to be arranged to that there is no danger or
nuisance or the likelihood of danger of nuisance either to those on
the vehicle or on the road.

= Nevertheless, a number of serious accidents are caused annually
because loads have not been adequately secured. The driver
should ensure that the vehicle is loaded/unloaded safely so there
is no risk to themselves or any other persons in the area where
the load is being handled;

= the load should be stable before being lashed and spread to
keep the centre of gravity as low as possible;

= heavy items should be carried along the centre of the vehicle,
and in front of lighter items. Heavy items should be placed at the
bottom if the load is stacked;

= care must be taken when loading a vehicle to see that the load is
evenly distributed;

= particular care must be taken to avoid axle overloading, for this
can happen even though the gross weight is not exceeded.
Changes in distribution of the load en route may cause an axle
overload unless the load is re-distributed;

= ropes, chains and other lashings used to secure
the load should be checked before use and
should be suitable for the job.

Drivers’ Handbook - P age 49



Load sheets are intended to protect the load from the weather and
not to secure it to the vehicle.

Projecting load requirements are defined as follows: -

a forward projection exceeding 2 metres but not exceeding 3.5
metres, an attendant must be available in addition to the driver,
and the load must be fitted with a special marker which must be
illuminated at night;

a rearward projection exceeding 1 metre but not exceeding 2
metres, the load must be rendered clearly visible. A red lamp
clearly visible from a distance, if a lamp isn't available anything
red but it must be clearly visible;

a rearward projection exceeding 2 metres but not exceeding
3.5 metres, the load must be fitted with a special marker and
illuminated at night;

a forward or rearward projection exceeding 3.5 metres, an
attendant must be available in addition to the driver and prior
notice must also be given to the chief constable for the areas
through which the vehicle is to travel;

side projections of load must not exceed 305 mm on either side
of a vehicle or trailer and the overall width of the vehicle and

its load must not exceed 2.9m. Where loads exceed 2.9m the
following requirements must be observed:-

2.9mto 3.5m - Police notification and marker boards.

3.5mTo 4.3m - Police notification, marker boards and attendant.

Police notification required
2 days in advance of movement.

Caerphilly County Borough Council  pyge 50




Part © - The Vehicle

TRAILERS

Should a driver be required to drive a vehicle whilst towing a
trailer, it is important that you have the correct class of driving
licence to allow them to do so.

drivers must ensure when towing trailers that the trailer board
is securely attached with lights working correctly. Drivers must
also have the correct class of licence to allow him/her to tow
trailer, and ensure they don't exceed the gross train weight of
the vehicle;

When coupling /uncoupling trailers, it is important to ensure
that all brakes are applied and that the hitch support leg/
wheel is in position prior to removing the pin. A breakaway
cable must always be fitted between the trailer and the
towing vehicle;

‘The laden weight of the trailer must not exceed the

manufacturers plated weight for the trailer.

If in doubt, contact your supervisor, or a member of staff from
the Fleet Management Section who will be able to advise you.

Drivers’ Handbook - Page 51




USING A PRIVATELY OWNED VEHICLE
ON COUNCIL BUSINESS

You may be requested to use your private car on official council
journey’s (for which reimbursement will be made) in order

to maintain service delivery. Driver’s may without prejudice
refuse such requests, but should you accept this request it is the
driver’s responsibility to ensure you comply with the following
conditions:-

= Appropriate Business Use on your Car Insurance;
= Your vehicle has a valid MOT Certificate;
= Your vehicle displays a valid VED Disc (Road Fund Licence Disk);

= Your vehicle is Legal and fit to be driven on a public highway.

Caerphilly Gounty Borough Gouncil p age 52




rart D - Operator’s Licence

OPERATOR'’S LICENCE

This Authority has been granted an Operator’s Licence

(‘O’ Licence) to operate its fleet of vehicles, including those
used on Council Business not directly owned by the Council,
but leased or hired in from other sources. The Operator’s
Licence applies to all vehicles that have a Gross Vehicle
Weight in excess of 3500 Kgs.

The Operator’s Licence has numerous conditions attached
to it, and failure to comply with these conditions may result
in the Authority being taken to a Public Enquiry and a
consequence of this, is that its Operator’s Licence could be
revoked. Should this occur, the authority would not be able
to Operate vehicles in excess of 3500 Kgs, and this would
have severe repercussions on the Front Line Services, it
currently undertakes.

Drivers’ Handbook - Page 53




The undertakings of the Operator’s Licence are, that the licence
holder must make proper arrangements so that:-

= The rules on driver’s hours and tachographs are observed and
proper records kept;

=  Motor Vehicles and trailers are not overloaded,;
= Vehicles will operate within speed limits;

= Motor vehicles and trailers, including hired vehicles and trailers,
are kept fit and serviceable;

= Drivers report promptly any defects of symptoms of defects that
could prevent the safe operation of vehicles and/or trailers, and
that any defects are promptly recorded in writing;

= Records are kept (for 15 months) of all driver defect reports, all
safety inspections, routine maintenance and repairs to vehicles
and trailers and these are made available on request; and

= |nrespect of each operating centre specified, that the number of
authorised motor vehicles and the number of authorised trailers
kept there will not exceed the maximum numbers recorded
against the operating centre in this licence.

Caerphilly County Borough Council cannot operate its vehicle
without this licence. Any driver whose actions threaten

the retention of the Operator’s Licence may be subject to
disciplinary action. |

Caerphilly County Borough Councll  pyge 54




Part D - Operator’s Licence

DRIVER’S HOURS (EUROPEAN)

European legislation lays down strict rules for driving hours and
these are summarised below.

Maximum Driving before having a break of at least 45 minutes
is 4.5 hours. Brakes can be split into two, the first a minimum of
15 minutes the second a minimum of 30 minutes. If a driver takes
a break of 30 minutes as his first break, he will be required to take
a further 30 minute break.

Maximum Daily Driving time is 9 hours.

This can be extended to 10 hours on not more than two occasions

per week. The working time begins at any time of the day or night,

and continues until there is a daily rest period. A driver must take a
weekly rest period after no more than six daily driving periods.

= |n any two consecutive working weeks, the maximum driving
time is 90 hours;

= |n any period of 24 hours, the driver must take a daily rest of at
least 11 consecutive hours;

= A driver may reduce this on up to three occasions in any one week
to 9 consecutive hours;

= During each week a daily rest period must be extended into a
weekly rest period which must total 45 consecutive hours.

Drivers’ Handbook - Page 55




MAXIMUM DAILY DRIVING TIME (EU)

Up to 4.5hrs Up to Shrs
{1
o= w==)

First Break
minimum of
15 minutes

Second Break
minimum of
30 minutes

Caerphilly Gounty Borough Gouncil Page 56




Part D - Operator’s Licence

DRIVING HOURS (DOMESTIC)

= Driver’s should not exceed the Daily Driving Limit of 10 hours
max;

® Driver’s should not exceed the Daily Duty Limit of 11 hours max;

= A driver is exempt from the Daily Duty Limit on Non Driving
Days. This also applies to a driver who does not drive for more
than 4 hours on each day of the week;

= Driving time is spent at the controls of the vehicle for the
purpose of controlling its movement whether it is in motion
or not;

= The Domestic week is between 00:00 Monday to 24:00 Sunday;

= The Working Time Regulations requires that a break MUST BE
TAKEN AFTER A MAXIMUM OF SIX HOURS DUTY TIME.
Thirty minutes is required if working time is between six and nine
hours, and 45 minutes if total working time exceeds 9 hours.




MAXIMUM DAILY DRIVING TIME (UK)

Up to 5.5hrs Up to 10hrs

(GB o= - Yl ==

First Break
minimum of
30 minutes

Second Break
minimum of 15 minutes
if working more than
9 hours

After 10 hours
driving time STOP

Duty time not to
exceed 11 HOURS

Gaerphilly Gounty Borough Council Page 58




rart D - Operator’s Licence

TACHOGRAPHS
A tachograph is a dual function instrument that provides

information to the driver in his cab and, simultaneously makes
recordings of driver and vehicle activity.

DRIVER’S RESPONSIBILITIES

Use tachograph record sheet every day on which he/ she is driving,
starting from the moment he takes over the vehicle. The record
must not be withdrawn before the end of the daily working period
unless authorised.

Page 59




= Complete the written details on the centre field of the chart
at the beginning and end of his duty period. Any changes of
vehicle during the working day should also be noted;

= QOperate the activity switches to record accurately his various
work activities;

= Keep completed tachograph sheets for the current week, plus
the 28 calendar days preceding the start of the current week;

= Produce at the request of any authorised inspecting officer,
a record of his work;

= Ensure that the time clock is accurate and agrees with the
official time;

= The driver must return all completed charts to their employer
within 42 days;

= Where the driver has two or more employers during a week, the
driver should notify each employer of the identity of the other.
Each employer should provide the driver with blank charts
but the driver should ensure ALL charts are returned to the
employer that employed him first.

Gaerphilly County Borough Council age 60




rart D - Operator’s Licence

DIGITAL TACHOGRAPHS

Digital Tachographs came into place on 1st May, 2006. All
vehicles registered after that date will be fitted with a new
Digital Tachograph.

In order to use a vehicle with a Digital Tachograph, the Company
must have Company Cards and the Driver must apply for a
Driver’s Card. There is a cost to this card, and these will be shown
on the paperwork accompanying any application forms.

Once a Driver’s Card is issued, it is a requirement that card is
carried with the Driver even in the event of him having to use a
vehicle with an analogue tachograph.

The legal requirement is that Driver’s must download their card
every 21days although this authority is advising every 7 days for
consistency purposes.

In the event of the Driver’s card being lost the Driver must report
the loss to the DVLA and will only be able to driver a vehicle for
15 days without a Driver’s Card. The Driver will be required to
collect the replacement Driver’s Card from the nearest DVLA
Licensing Office.




OVERLOADING

It is a requirement of our Operator’s Licence that vehicles should not
under any circumstances be overloaded, either on individual axles
or on gross vehicle weight.

Under the Road Traffic Act, 1988 it is an offence to use a goods
vehicle, or cause or permit it to be used when overloaded. The
maximum fine that can be imposed in £5000. There is no statutory
tolerance where gross or axle weights are exceeded, and although
enforcement officers will exercise their judgement in the light of
individual circumstances.

If a vehicle is so overloaded that its use involves a danger of injury
to any person, for example, impairment of braking or steering
performance, it is possible for both company and driver to be
charged with more serious offence of using a vehicle in a dangerous
condition. This carries the same maximum fine of £5000 together
with additional penalties of obligatory licence endorsement and
discretionary disqualification.

An overloaded vehicle can be a danger to the driver, passengers
and other road users. If a vehicle is weighed by vosa, the police
or trading standards and found to be overloaded on gross
vehicle weight, axle weight or both, the company and/or driver
risks prosecution.

Caerphilly Gounty Borough Gouncll p age 62




Part D - Operator’s Licence

SAFETY INSPECTIONS
m It is a legal requirement that vehicles in excess of 3.5 tonne Gross

Vehicle Weight have regular safety inspections as laid down in the
condition of the Operator’s Licence. In the case of Caerphilly County
Borough Council this time scale is 6 weeks. Driver’s should not drive
a vehicle knowing that the vehicle has not undergone its routine Six
Weekly Safety Inspections.

DEFECT REPORTING & KEEPING OF RECORDS

It is a requirement that the Driver of a Goods Vehicle completes
prior to taking his vehicle out of its depot, a Daily Defect Check
and Report on a vehicle. All defects must be reported on the
appropriate defect sheet and any defects report to the Fleet
Management Section, immediately these defects are found.

The Original Defect Report that highlights the defect must be
forwarded to the Fleet Management Section, where staff will
arrange for the defect to be rectified.

v KEEPING OF RECORDS

AND
GG All paperwork must be kept for a minimum kept in the vehicle

file for a minimum period of 15 months. This includes records of
safety inspections; defect reports and any repairs undertaken on
a particular vehicle.

Tachographs - tachographs must be kept with the driver for the
current day plus the previous 28 days, and then forwarded to the
Fleet Manager who must keep these records for a period of 1 year.

Drivers’ Handhook - Page 63



Part £ - The Long Distance Journey

PLANNING YOUR JOURNEY

Planning a journey is crucial to ensure that driver’s arrive at their
destination in a safe and refreshed manner. It may be that driving
is not always the most appropriate method of reaching your
destination, especially if it involved a considerable amount of
mileage.

Other alternatives such as bus or train may be safer and less
tiresome. If travelling by road is necessary, it may be prudent to
consider car sharing, in order that driving may be shared and
reduce to risk of tiredness.

Gaerphilly County Borough Gouncll p age 64




Part k - The Long Distance Journey

PRE JOURNEY CHECKS

= Prior to commencing your journey, whether in your own
private vehicle, or in a Council Owned vehicle, it is necessary
to undertake the pre journey checks;

= Ensure your vehicle is fit for the journey. Checks should be
undertaken on oil & water levels; tyres & tyre pressure; headlights
and brake lights; seatbelts are all in good working order;

= Ensure that your vehicle has a valid MOT and Road Fund Licence
Disc Displayed;

= That if you are using your private insurance, you have the
appropriate Business Mileage cover. If driving a Council Owned
Vehicle that you have undertaken the appropriate assessment
for the vehicle you are about to drive.

DRIVING HOURS

Whilst driving hours is not legislated unless driving for more than
6 hours on business, it is good practice and recommended that
employees should take a 15 minute break for every 2 hours of
driving. It is advisable to plan breaks and break locations in
advance of the journey.

Drivers’ Handbook - ' Page 65



YOUR SCHEDULE

If driving any distance, it is always advisable to schedule your
journey to allow sufficient time for driver’s to take account of
weather and traffic conditions, also taking account of speed
limits on your journey, and where possible avoiding peak time
traffic. Time should be allowed to ensure that your reach your
destination refreshed and in sufficient time for your meeting/
appointment.

When planning your journey consideration should be given to
avoiding night driving, times of the day when falling asleep, poor
concentration and lethargy is likely to occur.

OVERNIGHT STAYS

Should your journey include long distances to your place of work
/ meeting, it may be necessary to consider an overnight stay. If
this is the case, discuss this with your line manager / Head of
Service prior to commencing your journey, and obtain approval
in advance.

Caerphilly County Borough Councll o g




Part £ - The Long Distance Journey

ADVERSE WEATHER CONDITIONS

Should you experience adverse weather conditions, for example,
high winds, severe rainfall and flooding; fog; ice or snow) where
possible the journey should be re-arranged or undertaken at a
later date or when weather conditions improve.

Should weather conditions deteriorate when you are at the place
of work / appointment, it may be necessary to postpone your
return journey. Driver’s should consult with their line manager /
Head of Service who may advise and authorise an overnight stay
in this event.

COMMON SENSE

All driver’s have varying levels of ability and confidence, and
you as a driver knows your limitation with regard to driving
long distances, through rush hour traffic and in varying weather
conditions, you will know whether you are comfortable when
undertaking a particular journey or driving a particular vehicle -

REMEMBER, IF IN DOUBT - DON'T

Ill'ilml's’ Hanllllooll - P ag e 67




PARTA - THEPROTOCOL 02
Vehicle Safety Policy Statement 2
The Council’s Protocol on Monitoring 3
Occupation Road Risk
Managements Responsibility 4
Driver’s Responsibility 5
PARTB - THEDRIVER 06

Licenses and Assessment 6
Driving Licence Checks 6
Use of Vehicle 6
Private Cars on Official Journeys 7
Transportation of Hazardous Substances 4

8

Eyesight
Medical Conditions 8
Reporting of Accidents 10
Prosecutions or Intended Prosecutions 13
Alcohol, Drugs and Medication 14
Mobile Phones and other communication devices 15
Smoking 16
Security of Vehicle 16
Driver CPC 16
PARTC - THEVEHICLE 17
Vehicle Checks 17
Seat Belts 18
Theft of and from Vehicles 18
Damage and Abuse of Vehicles 19
Carrying of Loads on Vehicles 19
Loading 20
Trailers 22
Using a Privately Owned Vehicle on Council Business 23

Caerphilly Gounty Borough Gounell b0 o




PARTD

PARTE

OPERATOR’S LICENCE

Terms and Conditions of the Operator’s Licence
Driver's Hour’s (European)

Driver’s Hour’s (Domestic)

Tachographs

Digital Tachographs

Overloading

Safety Inspections

Defect Reporting

Keeping of Records

THE LONG DISTANCE JOURNEY
Planning your Journey

Pre Journey Checks

Driving Hours

Driving Schedule

Overnight Stays

Adverse Conditions

Common Sense

Drivers’ Handhook - Page 69

24
24
26
28
30
32
33
34
34
34

35
35
36
36

37 -

37
38
38




Appendix 2

Caerphilly County Borough Council

Privacy Impact Assessment
Vehicle Management information Systems

Date: January 2017

Author/s: Bev Griffiths (Information
Officer), Joanne Jones (CIG
Manager).

Consulteels: As documented.

Review frequency: Every 2 years

Next review date: January 2019

Reference no: 15/0946

R Y
A greener place LAERDHILLY
Man gwyrddach CAERFFILY
-

Page 70



Contents

Step 1: Why is @ PIA reqUIred? ...t 3
Step 2: Identify privacy risks and sOIUtiONS .......ccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 6
Y 1] o I S o 111 11 = X £ [ 12
Step 4: Data ProteCtion ReVIEW ... 13
Step 5: Approval of PIA OULCOMES ... e 14
Step 6: Integration of PIA outcomes into projectplan.............ccccovviiin.... 14
Annex to Step 4: Evidence all risks have been addressed .............ccccoe..... 15

2

Page 71



Step 1: Why is a PIA required?

Background

As outlined in draft Occupational Road Risk Policy the government has set a target
to reduce road traffic accidents by 2020, and part of this initiative is aimed at people
who drive council owned/leased vehicles as part of their work. The public sector is
also facing financial pressure, and it is vital that the Council finds ways of saving
money and working more efficiently.

Arrangements are proposed to ensure the reporting, recording and investigating of
all accidents and incidents from work related driving. In addition the Authority needs
to ensure that its vehicles are used safely, efficiently and effectively. Consequently,
the Authority will install and utilise Vehicle Management Information (VMI) systems
to its vehicle fleet which will be the subject of specific policies covering their use.
Clearly there is a privacy element to use of these systems therefore a Privacy Impact
Assessment is required taking account of the ICO’s Employment Practices Code,
existing privacy laws and looking ahead to the ‘privacy-by-design’ aspect of new data
protection legislation which will apply in May 2018.

VMI systems may include:-
e Vehicle Tracking Devices;
e CCTV/external Vehicle Camera Systems;
e Digital Tachographs.

(This list is not exhaustive).

These systems also have essential benefits in protecting employee safety, protecting
the security of the vehicle fleet and defending illegitimate claims against the Authority
as well as helping to ensure the Council can comply with its duties under S172 of the
Road Traffic Act and the Health and Safety at Work Act.

Proposed use of VMI systems

VMI systems will be installed within the Council’s fleet of vehicles to provide vehicle
security and location identification; vehicle management information and utilisation;
and information about driver behaviour. The systems may comprise:

e Digital tachographs on specific vehicles (a legislative requirement)

e 360 degree cameras on specific vehicles to record activity of other vehicles, and
correct operation of the council vehicle by staff (e.g. no double-loading, using a
banksman while reversing, etc).

e Vehicle tracker to determine where and how the vehicle is driven using GPS

e Specific service delivery technologies eg: salt spread monitoring.

Page 72



It is anticipated that over time, the introduction of the VMI systems will:

Provide more protection for employees and teams, by helping to pinpoint any
incident to the emergency services.

Help identify the nearest appropriate resource to deal with service requests,
emergency situations. improving the service provided to the public

Assist with optimising service delivery routes with regards to regular and one off
demands, with added benefits in terms of reduced fuel consumption, reduced
vehicle emissions and improved efficiency of vehicle usage.

Help with developing a system to allow works orders to be transmitted to and from
vehicles and improve two way communications between depots and work
locations

Facilitate the recording of certain specific information in relation to key
performance indicators, such as gully cleansing, street sweeping, gritting and
assist with monitoring of in-service vehicle utilisation.

Protect the authority against false insurance claims

Mitigate the requirement for daily log sheets for non Operator’s Licence Vehicles.
Assist with the recovering of stolen vehicles and supporting evidence in the event
of a road traffic incident.

Assist in the managing of Key Performance Indicators and Statutory Targets that
are imposed upon the authority e.g. carbon reduction

Positively monitor driver behaviour to assist in the development of a training
programme that could improve driving skills, which would subsequently result in
an overall reduction in costs and improved vehicle safety and efficiency.

Assist with the development and administration of route risk assessments.
Increase protection to the lone worker in that it will respond to potential
emergency situations by allowing the lone worker to press a panic button to call
for help.

Information gathered by VMI systems will assist in the day-to-day, effective
management of Council services. The information may also assist in the
application of the range of HR policies which are used to assist in the effective
management of the Authority’s multiple staff groups.

The system may be used to allow deliveries of material or equipment to the skilled
workforce to be improved, thereby reducing wasteful travelling time and optimizing
use of resources.

Systems can be developed to identify the nearest appropriate resources in the
event of an emergency or developing situation.

The system can be used to identify waste and uneconomical use of transport
resources in order to reduce costs.

A system may be developed that allows work to be transmitted to and from
vehicles electronically improving productivity through reducing unnecessary
downtime

The system may provide for safe & legal two-way communication between base
and the remote work location.

Generally Council vehicles are only used for Council business. However, this may
include the use of an authority vehicle out of hours when overtime is authorised, or
the vehicle is being used for stand by, call out or emergency activities. Monitoring
should only take place when a vehicle is being used for Council business. If
monitoring evidences that a vehicle is used outside work hours for non-Council
business, appropriate action may be taken.

Page 73



All employees will be made aware of the use of VMI systems and no information will
be recorded without their knowledge i.e. the system will not be used for covert
surveillance.

Information flows

The proposed uses of the vehicle tracking system are documented above, and give
a picture of the information flows. In addition:

The system allows data regarding the position and in some cases the application of
each vehicle to be determined, captured, relayed and securely stored within the
Fleet Management Service. This data is collected on a 24 hour, 7 day week basis.

Data will only be accessed by the duly appointed posts after completion and
authorisation of the VMI authorisation form, and will only be accessed at a central
point within the Council’s offices.

Data will be overwritten after 30 days, but data that requires retention due to an
incident will be (securely) stored for the required length of time according to the
purpose, as outlined in the Council’'s Records Retention and Disposal Policy. No
access to the system will be granted to unauthorised staff.

Data retained in the system will only be made available by the Fleet Manager for
audit and council business purposes on receipt of an authorised Request for
Information (completed VMI authorisation form) from an authorised Insurance or
Risk Management Officer/ Manager/ Head of Service/ Head Of HR/ Director. Where
necessary the Authority’s Exemption Panel will be consulted.

It is anticipated that there will be regular reports produced and supplied to service
managers, an example of these reports are indicated below:

Idling Reporting
Vehicles Used Out of Hours
Vehicles Used Outside the County Borough
Speeding Reports — in excess of 70 mph
» Vehicles not used
These reports will also be used to communicate any positive aspects to employees
and to identify any training needs which will benefit drivers and other employees as
well as the Authority in the long term.

>
>
>
>

Page 74



G, abed

Appendix 2

Step 2: ldentify privacy risks and solutions

Privacy risk to individuals Council risk (inc Solution(s) Evaluation: is
DPA, HRA, other the risk
law/ requirement). eliminated,
reduced, or
accepted?
1. Staff movements being Need to ensure that  The following lists monitoring activities Risk is
monitored constantly throughout  the processing from lowest privacy risk to employees to reduced but
the working day is highly complies with HRA highest privacy risk to employees: not eliminated,
intrusive, an infringement upon and DPA and in
their right to privacy (HRA), and particular P1 and 2 1. (lowest risk) Monitoring of vehicle
could cause anxiety amongst unless an exemption travel (i.e. route tracker)
staff. Intrusiveness would be applies e.g. S29 2. Use of outward facing cameras
increased if audio recordings (prevention or 3. Use of inward facing cameras

were used, so audio is not part of detection of crime). 4. (highest risk) Use of audio

these proposals. ICO

Employment Code of Practice Due to ICO Do not use the most privacy intrusive
cites continuous monitoring as Undertaking signed  activities (i.e. audio and in-cab cameras),
onlv iustifiable in hiah risk areas bv Chief Executive and use the least privacv intrusive

R
A greener place LAERDPHILLY
Man gwyrddach CAERFFILY
> 4



9, abed

for example working in a nuclear
power station or in a jewellers
with valuable objects.

Staff may be unaware that
historic information captured by
the vehicle monitoring equipment
could be used as part of
investigations into their conduct,
etc. to verify the actions/location
of an employee on a specified
day/time.

relating to use of
covert surveillance,
Audit Cttee agreed
that no employee
surveillance would
be undertaken until a
policy is written, but
this would be held in
abeyance due to
other pressing HR
priorities (Audit Cttee
minutes dated 11
June 2014). The
definition of
employee
surveillance was not
given, but can be
assumed to mean
covert surveillance,
as outlined in the
WAQO report.
However the Council
needs to be careful
to fully comply with
the ICO Undertaking
and Audit Cttee
requirements,
otherwise ICO action
and compensation

activities to achieve aims.

If the primary purpose is staff monitoring
for health and safety reasons (rather than
non-personal such as route efficiencies),
this needs to be very clear at outset of the
Occupational Road Risk Policy, together
with setting staff expectations that data
could be used in HR investigations.

Distinction between staff surveillance and
monitoring is blurred, so Member
consultation is key to make sure Members
are happy with this activity, either in the
absence of a surveillance policy, or to
trigger development of a surveillance
policy by HR.

Consent unlikely to be appropriate as
there may be occasions when the systems
need to be used even though consent is
withheld. Therefore DPA S29 may be
used for crime prevention/detection
purposes, or Sched 2(5)(d) ‘The
processing is necessary for the exercise
of any other functions of a public nature
exercised in the public interest by any
person’ for other purposes. Exemption
Panel needs to abprove use of these



) ) abed

claims could result.

A workforce that
feels untrusted is
less likely to want to
positively contribute
to the success of the
enterprise. Needs to
be managed

properly.

However not having
access to reliable
data from the
tracking system
could hinder
investigations,
potentially leading to
an erroneous
conclusion, or
prevent mistakes
being identified and
corrected before
they cause an
accident (which
could cause a
significant threat to
life).

exemptions/schedules the first time they
are used for each new purpose, so that
there is a full audit trail of careful
consideration of them.

However Principle 1 requirement for
fairness also needs to be fulfilled via the
following:

If a decision is made to go ahead, ensure
staff are informed that vehicle tracking is
being used e.g. through:

e Consultation with Trade Unions.

e Awareness raising sessions

e Newsletters

e Update driver manual

e Driver CPC Training

Only use data from the point that the
Vehicle Policy is agreed and staff informed
— use of historic data captured on cameras
prior to this date needs particular
consideration at Exemption Panel.

If considering usage in an HR
investigation, (and a criminal offence is not
being investigated), any alternative
evidence available should be considered



g,) abed

2. Privacy risk to members of the
public recorded by outward
facing cameras.

3. Function creep — once initial
purpose is approved it could be
used for other purposes.

first which would be more compatible with
the DPA. The employee should be
presented with the information used to
allow them to make representations before
any action is taken.

DPA and HRA Minimise amount of recording that will
breaches, which cover members of the public and private
could lead to ICO property where possible.

action and

independent action Information on type of recording,
through courts. purposes, and contact details for Council

as Data Controller needs to be
communicated, e.g. on clear, large vehicle
signs; Council website; Newsline articles;
etc.

Keep information secure and dispose of it

regularly.
DPA and HRA Set up a robust mechanism to evidence
breaches unless that each request to use information
new purpose is captured by the vehicle tracking system
properly considered  has been considered by Exemption Panel
via a PIA, which and would comply with the DPA, HRA, etc.

could lead to ICO
action (inc monetary  To make sure there is trust, the stated
pnenalties) and aims in the nolicv must be adhered to and

CMT may
need to accept
this risk as it is
difficult to
reduce it.

Reduced.



6/ abed

4. Information captured by the
vehicle tracking system should
be included in searches for SARs
where relevant.

5. Access to personal information
captured by the VMI system
should be restricted to a limited
number of individuals e.g. HR
officers, Head of Service, etc.

compensation
claims.

Failure to comply
with P6 DPA could
lead to ICO action

Failure to comply
with DPA could
result in ICO action
and compensation
claims.

data should only be used for the purposes
outlined in the policy and communicated to
staff (and only for business activities),
unless the data reveals activities which no
employer could reasonably be expected to
ignore. In such instances the

Authority’s relevant policies will be
followed.

Good record-keeping practices, including
appropriate filing practices and following
retention periods on tracking data as well
as data stored in other formats such as
email, will ensure this is done.

Identify the process to be followed when
requesting access to information (the
‘Internal Request for data from VMS’
form), and establish who is able to
authorise such requests e.g. Heads of
Service. Exemption Panel should be
involved, at least in the early days, to
establish acceptable uses of the system in
compliance with he agreed policy. Training
should be provided for staff involved so
they thoroughly understand the process.

Svstem access hv desianated users will

Reduced

Reduced

10



08 abed

6. Information retained for longer
than necessary.

7. Any third party collection of
data? Individual needs to be
confident that if so their
information is protected.

Failure to comply
with P1, 5 and 6
DPA.

Failure to comply
with P7 DPA, which
can lead to
substantial monetary
penalties.

be monitored with a full audit trail available
to authorised personnel.

Security of the system should be
documented in the policy.

Justify reasons for retention decision
clearly in policy, and make sure there are
mechanisms for regular review and
confidential destruction of data.

Put Data Processor agreements in place.

If transferred outside EEA, make sure
equivalent DP protections are in place.

Reduced

Reduced

11



Appendix 2

Step 3: Consultations

CIGU and SIRO (undertaken throughout 2015-2017)

CMT

ICO (undertaken Feb 2016)

HR Strategy Group (undertaken May 2016)

Trade Unions (undertaken October/November/December 2016 and January 2017)
Exemption Panel on specific uses of the data as they arise (if required)
Employees

Heads of Service

Legal

Members

R
A greener place LAERDPHILLY
Man gwyrddach CAERFFILY
> 4

Page 81



Step 4: Data Protection Review

CIGU must verify that this PIA has considered all aspects of data protection and privacy,
and will seek legal advice at Exemption Panel if necessary.

Date PIA CIGU comments CIGU Officer
shared name and date
Drawn up by | am advised that information gathered by VMI Joanne Jones,
CIGU in systems will assist in the day-to-day, effective Feb 2017

conjunction management of Council services. The information
with Service  may also assist in the application of the range of HR
Area, Jan policies which are used to assist in the effective
2016 — Feb management of the Authority’s multiple staff groups
2017
The current Council stance, as agreed by Members
at Audit Cttee on 11 June 2014, that no employee
surveillance will be undertaken means that extreme
caution needs to be taken in considering proposals
for monitoring staff. Any monitoring needs to be
carefully considered and consulted on (including
with Trade Unions) to make sure Members are
satisfied and ICO is confident the Undertaking
signed by the Authority is being fully complied with.

The least privacy intrusive technologies should be
considered to achieve stated aims, avoiding the
most intrusive (including audio) as much as
possible..Clarity on legal powers to process data is
important, even more so when the General Data
Protection Regulation takes effect in May 2018.
Consent to capture and use data is usually the
clearest legal power as long as fairness can also be
proven, and staff may give consent to prove they
have not acted inappropriately. However it is not
advisable to request consent if the Council will have
to use the data anyway, as failure to observe a
refusal of consent could be unfair. Therefore
reliance on other Sched 2 conditions and good
publicising of this data collection/use is advisable.
We need to be aware that there is always a risk of
challenge without evidenced consent, but the
consultations as part of this PIA and compromises
made on use of the technology lowers the risk.

Employees will be informed clearly in the Driver’s
Handbook that this technology is being implemented
and what their data could be used for, and it is
advisable that the public are informed via an article
in Newsline/Council website. or via anv other means

Page 82



deemed appropropriate.

Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act (RIPA) is not
relevant as none of this activity will be covert.

Step 5: Approval of PIA outcomes

Who has approved the privacy risks involved in the project? What solutions need to be
implemented? Is final impact on individuals a justified, compliant and proportionate response
to the project aims?

Risk Approved solution Approved by

As described in Step 2.
As outlined in Step 2.

Step 6: Integration of PIA outcomes into project plan

Who is responsible for integrating the PIA outcomes back into the project plan? Who is
responsible for implementing the solutions that have been approved? Who is the contact for
future privacy concerns?

Action to be taken Date for completion of Responsibility for action
actions

Contact point for future privacy concerns (must be an officer involved in project, not
CIGU).

Page 83

14



Annex to Step 4: Evidence all risks have been addressed

CIGU will confirm whether all aspects of DPA have been addressed in this PIA.

Principle 1

Personal data shall be processed fairly and lawfully and, in particular, shall not be
processed unless:

a) at least one of the conditions in Schedule 2 is met, and

b) in the case of sensitive personal data, at least one of the conditions in Schedule 3
is also met.

Question: Response:

Have you identified the purpose of the project? Yes

How will you tell individuals about the use of their = Approval of Occupational Road
personal data? Risk Policy by Trade Unions and

Members and subsequent
publicising of policy; use of
generic Fair Processing Notice
on website, staff briefing
sessions, work manual, general
policy awareness on surveillance,

etc.
Do you need to amend your privacy notices? Yes
How will fairness be achieved? As described above, and

ensuring all procedures on
retention, access and use of data

are followed.
Have you established which conditions for Can consent be achieved? If not
processing apply? (or if not desirable) DPA Sched

2(5)(d); also exemption S29
when appropriate.

If you are relying on consent to process personal

data, how will this be collected and what will you  Consent is not deemed to be

do if it is withheld or withdrawn? required for the VMI systems
currently being proposed for use.
If these systems are ever subject
to change, the TU’s would be
consulted again, PIA revised, and
requirement for consent would be
revisited.

Human Rights Act considerations:

Will vour actions interfere with the riaht to privacy = Yes., as emplovees are entitled to

Page 84



under Article 8?

Have you identified the social need and aims of

the project?

Are your actions a proportionate response to the

social need?

Other legal considerations:

Principle 2

a degree of privacy in work
environment (ICO). However
proposals have been sufficiently
co-ordinated and risk managed
and concessions have been
made to limit that impact.i.e no
audio, no in cab use.

Yes, recent high profile media
stories illustrate tragic
consequences of accidents
involving heavy vehicles. Also
can protect employees in the
event of complaints about them.

Yes

H&S legislation, Duties under
Road Traffic Act

Personal data shall be obtained only for one or more specified and lawful purposes,
and shall not be further processed in any manner incompatible with that purpose or

those purposes.

Question:

Does your project plan cover all of the purposes

for processing personal data?

Have you identified potential new purposes as the

scope of the project expands?

Principle 3

Response:
Yes

No, if new purposes are identified
an update to this PIA will always
be required.

Personal data shall be adequate, relevant and not excessive in relation to the purpose

or purposes for which they are processed.

Question:

Is the quality of the information good enough for

the purposes it is used?

Which personal data could you not use, without

compromising the needs of the project?

Principle 4

Response:
Yes

Audio and in-cab cameras will not
be used unless required at a later
date. Further consultation will be
required with Trades Union and
Stakeholders

Personal data shall be accurate and, where necessary, kept up to date.

16

Page 85



Question:

If you are procuring new software does it allow
you to amend data when necessary?

How are you ensuring that personal data
obtained from individuals or other organisations is
accurate?

Principle 5

Personal data processed for any purpose or purposes shall not be kept for longer

Response:
Yes

The vehicle tracking system may
be used to make contact with the
operatives throughout the day to
update/amend work schedules or
to divert resources when
required, and this would verify
that the vehicles are in the
location detailed by the tracking
system. Reports will also be
produced for use by management
for operational and performance
management purposes.

than necessary for that purpose or those purposes.

Question:

What retention periods are suitable for the
personal data you will be processing?

Are you procuring software that will allow you to
delete information in line with your retention
periods?

Principle 6

Response:

30 days, unless longer needed
due to Council Business
requirements.

Yes

Personal data shall be processed in accordance with the rights of data subjects

under this Act.
Question:

Will the systems you are putting in place allow
you to respond to subject access requests?

If the project involves marketing, have you got a
procedure for individuals to opt out of their

Response:

Any records (if not overwritten)
will need to be considered for
disclosure under a SAR. Make
sure technology used is able to
extract relevant data, including
pixelating or editing unnecessary
data.

N/A.

Page 86

17



information being used for that purpose?

Principle 7

Appropriate technical and organisational measures shall be taken against
unauthorised or unlawful processing of personal data and against accidental loss or
destruction of, or damage to, personal data.

Question: Response:

Do any new systems provide protection against Ensure that access to the system
the security risks you have identified? is only given to officers who need
it.
(VMI Authorisation Form).
If Cloud storage is used, check
with IT Security Team.

What training and instructions are necessary to Staff are to be provided with the

ensure that staff know how to operate a new necessary training including the

system securely? procedure to be followed if
information is requested for use
in any investigation. Information
gathered by VMI systems will
assist in the day-to-day, effective
management of Council services.
The information may also assist
in the application of the range of
HR policies which are used to
assist in the effective
management of the Authority’s
multiple staff groups.

Principle 8

Personal data shall not be transferred to a country or territory outside the European
Economic Area unless that country of territory ensures and adequate level of
protection for the rights and freedoms of data subjects in relation to the processing
of personal data.

Question: Response:

Will the project require you to transfer data No. When new suppliers are

outside of the EEA? chosen, this question will be
asked.

If you will be making transfers, how will you
ensure that the data is adequately protected?

Page 87

18



Appendix 3

A Y Internal request for data from Vehicle Management Systems
LAERDPHILLY
%ERFFILI Owner: Fleet Management Date: January 2017

All requests for data must be made via completion of this form.
Purpose and objectives of Vehicle Management Systems

The Vehicle Management System collects information to maintain public safety and manage an
efficient fleet operation, assisting the Council to comply with S172 of the Road Traffic Act 1988
and the Health and Safety at Work Act 1974. Information will include personal data of employees
and the public, and a Privacy Impact Assessment has therefore been undertaken.

The Vehicle Management System has the following objectives:

e Protect safety of the public and employees
e Protect security of the vehicle fleet
e Protect public funds by facilitating more efficient operation of vehicle fleet and defending claims

Some Vehicle Management System devices cover public open spaces (e.g. 360 degree cameras)
so the system must be compatible with operation of the Council's Public Open Space CCTV,
including informing the public of use of these systems. Systems must also only be used in line with
information given to employees in the Driver's Handbook. This will ensure openness,
transparency, legality and increase likelihood of acceptability as evidence in court.

Approving disclosure requests

Data retained in the system will only be made available by the Fleet Manager for audit and Council
business purposes on receipt of a completed form by an Insurance or Risk Management Officer/
Manager/ Head of Service/ Head Of HR/ Director of Service. Where necessary the Authority’s
Exemption Panel will be consulted.

Designated Officers who can approve requests in accordance with these objectives are Team
Managers. All requests must be counter-signed by Head of Service. Designated Officers and

recipients of the data must have completed Protecting Information elearning within the last 12
months.

If you are unsure whether a request meets these objectives, or for any request that you would like
to approve but does not meet the objectives, contact Corporate Information Governance Unit on
x3041/4320 who can seek advice from Exemption Panel if needed.

Please note that data is only kept for one month, unless secured as evidence.

Completed disclosure forms, and any notes to evidence decision-making, must be securely
retained by Designated Officers in line with the Council’s retention schedule in case of future
challenge.

Page 88



Appendix 3
Duties of data recipients - if data is authorised for release it must:

1. only be used for Vehicle Management System objectives;
2. not be released to third parties without Exemption Panel consideration;
3. be maintained securely and deleted promptly when no longer required.

Page 89



In respect of investigation of an incident, | require the following information:

Appendix 3

Type of data (e.g. vehicle CCTV)

Incident date: Incident time:

Incident location:

Incident description, including
action taken by employees*:

*If request arises from a complaint,
anonymous or other, notify Corporate
Complaints Section for information
purposes.

Reason for request:

| am requesting: View only | Download

Share with third parties

Delete as appropriate: | Yes | No | Yes | No

Contact CIGU on x4320/3041

| understand the duties of data recipients and have undertaken Protecting Information training:

Name: Sign:
Position and ID: Email:
Service Area: Tel no:
Designated Manager - | have undertaken Protecting Information | Viewed Downloaded
training and confirm that data can be:
Delete as appropriate: | Yes No Yes No
Name: Sign:
Position and ID: Email:
Service Area: Tel no:
Head of Service - | counter-sign this application (delete as appropriate) | Approved | Refused
Name: Sign:
Position and ID: Email:
Service Area: Tel no:
System accessed and information produced by:
Name: Sign:
Position and ID: Email:

Page 90




Appendix 3

Service Area:

Tel no:

Page 91




Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 92



Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 6

A Y
CAERPHILLY
CAERFFILI
> 4

CABINET - 29TH MARCH 2017

PUBLIC INTEREST TEST - EXEMPTION FROM DISCLOSURE OF DOCUMENTS
SCHEDULE 12A LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972

SUBJECT: COMMUNITY CENTRES - EXTENSION TO FLEXIBLE RETIREMENT
DUE TO EXCEPTIONAL CIRCUMSTANCES

REPORT BY: INTERIM HEAD OF LEGAL SERVICES AND MONITORING OFFICER

| have considered grounds for exemption of information contained in the report referred to above
and make the following recommendations to the Proper Officer:-

EXEMPTIONS APPLYING TO THE REPORT:

There is 1 report included with this agenda. The report contains information relating to a particular
individual (paragraph 12) and information relating to the financial or business affairs of the
particular person (including the authority holding the information) (paragraph 14).

FACTORS IN FAVOUR OF DISCLOSURE:
There is a public interest in the way in which the Council will be organising its internal staffing
arrangements,

PREJUDICE WHICH WOULD RESULT IF THE iNFORMATION WERE DISCLOSED:

The report contains detailed information regarding internal staffing arrangements for the
Directorate named in the report and contains personal information about an individual Officer
referred to in the report.

MY VIEW ON THE PUBLIC INTEREST TEST IS AS FOLLOWS:

That paragraphs 12 and 14 should apply. My view on the Public Interest Test is that whilst there
is a need to ensure transparency and accountability of a Public Authority for decisions taken in
relation to staffing issues, this must be balanced against the fact that the information about the
individual referred to in the report is personal information that is protected by the Data Protection
Act 1998. :

The information is not affected by any other statutory provision which requires the information to
be publicly registered. .

On that basis | feel that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public
interest in disclosing the information. Members are asked to consider this factor when
determining the public interest test, which they must decide upon when considering excluding the
public from this part of the meeting.

Page 93



RECOMMENDED DECISION ON EXEMPTION FROM DISCLOSURE:

On that basis | feel that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in
disclosing the information, and that the report should be exempt.

Signed: W Dated: 2)131\?-

Post: Interim Head of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer

| accept/doermetaseapt the recommendation made above.

Signed: s (gi"'« > Date: D\ \ 2| 7
Proper Officer

Page 94



Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 7

By virtue of paragraph(s) 12, 14 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 95



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



	Agenda
	3 Cynhaliwyd y Cabinet ar 15fed Mawrth 2017.
	4 Cynhaliwyd y Panel Ymgynghorol Cenedlaethau'r Dyfodol y 24ain Tachwedd 2016.
	5 Polisi Risg Ffyrdd Galwedigaethol.
	Cabinet Report - Occupational Road Risk Policy
	Occupational Road Risk Policy Appendix 1
	Occupational Road Risk Policy Appendix
	January 2017
	CONTENT
	Appendix 1: Drivers Handbook
	Appendix 2: VMI Systems Privacy Impact Assessment (PIA)



	Occupational Road Risk Policy Appendix 1
	Occupational Road Risk Policy Appendix 2
	Step 1: Why is a PIA required? 
	Step 2: Identify privacy risks and solutions
	Step 3: Consultations
	Step 4: Data Protection Review 
	Step 5: Approval of PIA outcomes 
	Step 6: Integration of PIA outcomes into project plan  
	Annex to Step 4: Evidence all risks have been addressed

	Occupational Road Risk Policy Appendix 3


	6 I dderbyn ac ystyried yr adroddiad(au) canlynol sydd ym marn y Swyddog Priodol yn gallu cael ei drafod pan nad yw'r cyfarfod ar agor i'r cyhoedd ac i ystyried yn gyntaf os yw lles y cyhoedd yn golygu y dylai'r cyfarfod gael ei gau i'r cyhoedd ar gyfer ystyriaeth o'r eitem(au):-
	7 Canolfannau Cymunedol  - Estyniad o Ymddeoliad Hyblyg Oherwydd Amgylchiadau Eithriadol.

